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OFFICIAL Document 2

From: William

To: Elliot Anderson; Secretary

Cc: s22

Subject: Draft memo regarding remuneration of Secretary

Date: Wednesday, 5 June 2024 3:29:47 PM

Attachments: Draft memo regarding Secretary"s remuneration 5th June, 2024.pdf

Dear Elliot and Elizabeth,

Please find herewith a draft memo regarding remunerating Elizabeth as an office
administrator.

I have sent this to you as a draft in case there are particular points where further
information may be needed. If that si so please contact me tonight, and maybe we can
have a phone link up between with the three of us.

There is a clear way forward to appoint Elizabeth, but we must act within the law. In this
regard, note that | strongly support Wulli Wulli people undertaking the administrative
tasks, and hope that this memo makes that happen as soon as possible.

Yours,

Bill
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OFFICIAL Document 2A

P.O. Box 416
Nundah
. . QLD 4012
Himalaya Consulting AUSTRALIA
DRAFT MEMO
TO: WWNAC Board
RE: Employment of the Secretary in a remunerated capacity

DATE: 5th June, 2024.
REFERENCES

Minutes of WWNAC Directors Meeting dated 19th June, 2023 (REF A)

Social, Community, Home Care and Disability Services Industry Award 2010 [https://
library.fairwork.gov.au/award/?krn=ma000100#viewer-page-heading] (REF B)
Clerks—Private Sector Award 2020 [https://www.fairwork.gov.au/employment-conditions/
awards/awards-summary/ma000002-summary] (REF C)

INTRODUCTION

1. The question has arisen as to whether Elizabeth Blucher can be remunerated for the
work she undertakes as Secretary of WWNAC, given the performance of this task is
currently consuming a reasonable number of hours.

2. This briefing paper has been prepared at the request of the Chairman to address
whether to not the Secretary can be remunerated by the Corporation, and if so, how
this should happen.

3. This memorandum does not purport to be legal advice, and attention is drawn to the
matters raised in paragraph of this document.

CAN THE SECRETARY BE REMUNERATED?

4. The Rule Book governs the powers, functions and duties of the directors of WWNAC in

various places, but most importantly in Rule 12 which directly addresses these matters.

5. The most relevant portion of Rule 12 is as follows:
12.3. Remuneration

(a) The directors may be paid such reasonable remuneration as agreed to by
a majority of the members at a duly constituted general meeting of the
corporation.

(b) Rule 12.3(a) does not prevent reasonable payments (having regard to the
market costs of obtaining similar goods or services) to the director for a
contract for goods or services provided that rule 12.2 has been complied with.

Himalaya Consulting Pty Ltd (ACN 136 443 822)
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(c) The corporation may pay the directors' travelling and other expenses
that the directors incur:

() in attending directors‘ meetings or any meetings of committees of
directors;

(i) in attending any general meetings of the corporation;

(iii) in connection with the corporation‘s business.

. Taken together, the various paragraphs of Rule 12.3 should be interpreted as saying
that directors are not to be paid unless it is authorised by the majority of members at a
general meeting. There are two exceptions to this is: where a director provides goods
or services; or, where the director is paid expenses only for attending meetings or other
matters connected with the corporation’s business.

. The “goods and services” exception is clarified in Rule 12.3 (b) and allows for
payments which are reasonable having regard to the market costs of obtaining similar
goods and services. A good example of this would be if a director was a plumber, and
was engaged to fix the plumbing to the kitchen in the Corporation’s offices. The costs
for time and materials, at the market rate, would be payable without further reference to
the members.

. An unstated, but implicit element of this is that the work must be authorised by the
Board, and subject both to WWNAC'’s own rules regarding conflicts of interest, and
those imposed under the Corporations Act, and the CATSI Act. It is important to note
that WWNAC's Rule Book cannot override the statutory provisions of either Act.

. The relevant statutory provision of the CATSI Act is Section 252.1 which provides:
Remuneration

(1) Unless the constitution of an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander corporation
provides otherwise, the directors of the corporation are not to be paid remuneration.
Note: If a director is an employee of the corporation, the director is not precluded
from receiving remuneration as an employee.

(2) If an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander corporation's constitution permits the
payment of remuneration, the remuneration is to be determined by the corporation
by resolution in general meeting.

Expenses

(3) The corporation may pay the directors' travelling and other expenses that the
directors properly incur:

(a) in attending directors' meetings or any meetings of committees of
directors; and

(b) in attending any general meetings of the corporation; and

(c) in connection with the corporation's business.

Page 2
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10.This is further qualified by section 287 of the CATSI Act which sets out the exceptions
to the member approval requirements of section 284. Section 287 provides:

Remuneration and reimbursement for officer or employee
Benefits that are reasonable remuneration to employees

(1) Member approval is not needed to give a financial benefit if:

(a) the benefit is remuneration to a related party as an employee of the
following:

() the corporation;

(i) an entity that the corporation controls;

(i) an entity that controls the corporation;

(iv) an entity that is controlled by an entity that controls the corporation; and
(b) to give the remuneration would be reasonable given:

() the circumstances of the corporation or entity giving the remuneration;

and
(i) the related party's circumstances (including the responsibilities involved
in the employment, the employee's experience and performance record and

the employee's length of service).

11. Having read to all of this, there is a very narrow path by which a director can be
appointed to a specific role, having regard to the tasks to be performed and the
circumstances of the Corporation. However, this must be the subject of a specific

Board resolution.

BOARD APPROVAL TO DATE

12.0n the 19th June, 2023, the Board met at Bundaberg, and discussed the remuneration
of an office administrator, with the Minutes of the meeting recording:

Directors agreed an office was required together with an administration person to
support WWNAC requirements. The person would require applicable skills to
undertake the role with an ad/EOI to be issued noting the recruitment process could
take some 6 to 12 weeks. The training and development funds allotted in the NIAA

[grant] would be utilised.

13.This discussion clearly anticipated an open recruitment process, although the Minutes
go on to state that:

Directors agreed with the suggestion EB undertake the supporting role until an
administrator was employed noting there could be more than one person
performing the admin tasks on a two by 20 hours per week basis. EB would also be

able to train the incoming person.

Page 3
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14.There was some further discussion recorded in the Minutes regarding discussions
being held with the NIAA regarding his this was to be done. This would perhaps
account for the wording of the resolution which read:

The WWNAC Board resolved to engage a person to undertake the interim
administration role now with an ad/EOI to be issued for an administrator to be
appointed as soon as possible.

15.However, the final resolution did not appoint the Secretary, nor anyone else, to the
position of interim administrator. The resolution merely referred to appointing “a person”
to undertake this role. The exact wording was:

The WWNAC Board resolved to engage a person to undertake the interim
administration role now with an ad/EQI to be issued for an administrator to be

appointed as soon as possible.

16. As the Secretary was not appointed, the Secretary cannot be paid back pay to a date
in June last year.

17.The other point to note is that this was not a permanent position, but an interim
appointment until a permanent administrator could be appointed after a proper
recruitment process had been undertaken.

18.1n the absence of the resolution nominating a person to this position, the Secretary
cannot be employed without the Board passing a resolution to specifically appoint her.

19. Since then, nothing has been done about the matter.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

20.There is one further task which will need to be done for an appointment of the
Secretary (or any other person) to be valid. That is, the Board will need to resolve the
terms and conditions of employment, including the rate of pay.

21. A formal resolution of the Board regarding this is even more important than normal if it
is intended to appoint a director as an employee, given the obvious tensions between
the two roles, and given that there is no open recruitment process.

22. A suitable mechanism must therefore be found which satisfies the issues raised in
paragraphs 17 and 18, as well as the limitations included in section 287(1)(b) of the
CATSI Act that the remuneration be “reasonable given... the circumstances of the
corporation” and a parallel requirement in Rule 12.3(b) of the WWNAC Rule Book
which provides for “reasonable payments” for goods and services provided by a
director.

23.1f the Board were to exercise its discretion/judgment in determining the rate of
remuneration of a fellow director, it would open itself to claims of conflict of interest, or
more correctly, that it was a related party transaction given that the person being
employed is an associate of the other directors under section 15 of the Corporations
Act 2001.

Page 4
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24.The solution to this problem is to set the rate of remuneration according to an existing
award. There is no award directly applicable to Indigenous Corporations.

25.1 have carefully examined the industrial awards for different clerical staff which have
been approved by the Commonwealth Fair Work Commission, and have identified two
awards as potentially relevant. These are the Social, Community, Home Care and
Disability Services Industry Award 2010 (REF B) and the Clerks—Private Sector Award
2020 (REF C), links to both of which are above.

26.Both of these awards have been consolidated by the Fair Work Commission to the 9th
April 2024.

The Saocial, Community, Home Care and Disability Services Industry Award 2010

27.Clause 4.1 (b) of the Social, Community, Home Care and Disability Services Industry
Award 2010 specifies that it applies to employers throughout Australia in the social and
community services sector.

28.This is defined in the award as:

social and community services sector means the provision of social and community
services including social work, recreation work, welfare work, youth work or
community development work....

29. The exclusions from the award set out in clause 4.2 of the award do not apply to
WWNAC.

30.0ne possibility is that a person might fall under two different awards. It is a standard
clause of modern awards that:

Where an employer is covered by more than one award, an employee of that
employer is covered by the award classification which is most appropriate to the
work performed by the employee and to the environment in which the employee
normally performs the work.

The Clerks—Private Sector Award 2020

31.1t is appropriate therefore to also consider the Clerks—Private Sector Award 2020
covers employees undertaking private sector clerical work, which is defined in the
award as:

clerical work includes recording, typing, calculating, invoicing, billing, charging,
checking, receiving and answering calls, cash handling, operating a telephone
switchboard, attending a reception desk and administrative duties of a clerical
nature.

32.This award seems to accurately capture some of the clerical work which would pertain
to an office administrator.

33.In order to ensure | accurately captured the work which is, and will be performed, | sent
an emalil to the Secretary setting out the duties attributable to levels 2 and 3 of each
award and asking her to determine which was most applicable to her, or whether she
Page 5
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wished to set out other duties which she believes more accurately reflect the tasks to
be performed.

34.She identified the Social, Community, Home Care and Disability Services Industry
Award 2010, level 3. The particular tasks corresponding to this award and level are
stated to be:

» undertake responsibility for various activities in a specialised area; exercise
responsibility for a function within the organisation;

» allow the scope for exercising initiative in the application of established work
procedures;

e assist in a range of functions and/or contribute to interpretation of matters for
which there are no clearly established practices and procedures although such
activity would not be the sole responsibility of such an employee within the
workplace;

» provide secretarial and/or administrative support requiring a high degree of
judgment, initiative, confidentiality and sensitivity in the performance of work;

» assist with or provide a range of records management services, however the
responsibility for the records management service would not rest with the
employee;

» proficient in the operation of the computer to enable modification and/or
correction of computer software systems or packages and/or identification
problems. This level could include systems administrators in small to medium
sized organisations whose responsibility includes the security/integrity of the
system;

» apply computing programming knowledge and skills in systems development,
maintenance and implementation under direction of a senior employee;

» supervise a limited number of lower classified employees or volunteers;

» allow the scope for exercising initiative in the application of established work
procedures;

» deliver single stream training programs; co-ordinate elementary service
programs;

» provide assistance to senior employees;

* where prime responsibility lies in a specialised field, employees at this level
would undertake at least some of the following:

() undertake some minor phase of a broad or more complex assignment;

(i) perform duties of a specialised nature;

(i) provide a range of information services;

(iv) plan and co-ordinate elementary community-based projects or programs;
perform moderately complex functions including social planning, demographic
analysis, survey design and analysis.

35. The difficulty is that this award level assumes the employee holds either and associate
diploma or advanced certificate in office administration. The Secretary had advised
this is not the case. Accordingly, the appropriate level would appear to be level 2 pay
point two, in recognition of her having undertaken ORIC governance training.

36.By virtue of clause 15.2 of the award, this would take the pay applicable under this this
classification from $995.00 per week to $1,026.20, assuming the employee undertakes
38 hours of work a week, as specified in clause 25.1(a) of the award. It is possible for
an employee to move to the next level if the employee has appropriate vocational

Page 6
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training or tertiary qualifications. It is also in the best interests of WWNAC to ensure
that staff are given ample opportunity to improve their skills through training courses.

37.1 also note that this week’s Fair Work Commission determination will see that pay rate
increase by 3.75% from the 1st July, 2024 to $1,064.68 per week for a full-time
employee.

38.The main issue to be resolved is the number of hours to be worked. WWNAC currently
has a “service provider” who is paid to perform many of these functions. | recognise
that the Secretary also undertakes some organisational work, but it is unlikely to run to
more than 20 hours per week. The position should be remunerated on a guaranteed
minimum 20 hours per week. This would be considered a part-time employee within the
provisions of clause 10.3 of the award. Accordingly, the weekly pay amount at this rate
would be $560.36 per week.

39.The award provides for casual employees to receive a loading of 25% of the award
rate, but this is in lieu of certain entittements which would otherwise be payable.
Adding the loading would take the applicable weekly rate of pay to $700.45 per week.
See paragraphs 43 to 45 below.

40.If the Secretary does undertake 20 hours per of this work, then the large amounts of
money being paid to the service provider will need to be reviewed as there is a clear
doubling up of tasks here. If WWNAC has a paid staff member performing 20 hours of
work per week (which is 86 hours per month) there seems no need for a service
provider to be paid to perform 20 hours of work a month. Two people cannot be paid to
do the same work.

41.From an accountability point of view, it is my clear recommendation that these
administrative functions be taken solely back within WWNAC. If, after a trial of some
months, the hours worked by the administrator turn out to be slightly more higher, then
the employment contract could be adjusted accordingly.

42.Scope also exists to appoint a second person to undertake administrative tasks at the
Toowoomba office, as this would still represent a saving to the Corporation.

ISSUES WITH AWARD WHICH MAY NEED CONSIDERATION

43.The award provisions relating to leave, including ceremonial leave at clause 35.
Ceremonial leave is set at up to 10 days per annum in addition to other leave, with the
permission of the employer. The relevant person to grant permission here would
appear to be the Chairman, but a written record of ceremonial leave taken will need to
be kept.

44.The award also contains lengthy requirements for the setting up of an award
agreement, the keeping of records, pay provisions, payment of superannuation,
superannuation reporting, and accounting for leave entitlements. The award also
precludes the payment of travelling expenses, or mileage allowance if using a company
vehicle, although accommodation, meal and petrol expenses are reimbursable against
production of receipts.

Page 7
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45.1t would be best, from a conflict of interest point of view, for the HR tasks in paragraph
44 to be handled by a specialist HR consultant. They would then issue a fortnightly
pay advice to WWNAC for payment of wages, as well as a quarterly calculation of
superannuation payable.

46.This should only take at most two hours a fortnight and should come at only a small
cost. | have made enquiries and have identified some organisations who should be
able to perform the task.

RECOMMENDATIONS
In light of the above, | make the following recommendations:
1. A meeting of the Board should happen as soon as practicable to deal with this matter.

2. If the Board wishes to employ Elizabeth to perform administrative tasks, then the Board
passes one of the following resolutions;

A) “That Elizabeth Blucher be appointed as office administrator in the Moura office
until such time as a permanent appointment can be made (without precluding
her right to apply for such position), and that while acting in this role she be paid
as a part-time employee for 20 hours per week under the Social, Community,
Home Care and Disability Services Industry Award 2010, level 2 pay point 2.”
OR

B) “That Elizabeth Blucher be appointed as office administrator in the Moura office
for a period of six months on a probationary basis, and that while acting in this
role she be paid as a part-time employee for 20 hours per week under the
Social, Community, Home Care and Disability Services Industry Award 2010,
level 2 pay point 2.” OR

C) “That Elizabeth Blucher be appointed as office administrator in the Moura office
on a permanent basis, and that she be paid as a part-time employee for 20
hours per week under the Social, Community, Home Care and Disability
Services Industry Award 2010, level 2 pay point 2.”

3. If the Board approves resolution 2A, that the board further resolve: “That WWNAC seek
expressions of interest for a person to be appointed as an office administrator in the
Moura office at a suitable level under the Social, Community, Home Care and Disability
Services Industry Award 2010, with expressions of interest closing on [DATE TO BE
DETERMINED].”

4. That the Chairman identify a suitable party to handle the back office functions

associated with staff wages and entitlements, with a recommendation to be confirmed
by the Board.

WOC
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P.O. Box 416
Nundah
. . QLD 4012
Himalaya Consulting AUSTRALIA
MEMO
TO: WWNAC Board
RE: Lease of an office in Toowoomba

DATE: 13th October, 2021.

OFFERED PROPERTY

We have been offered the opportunity to lease an office space within the complex
occupied by The Toowoomba ATSI Sporting & Community Association Inc (ABN 36 218
847 644) [TASCA] at 552-570 Anzac Avenue, Drayton QLD 4350.

The area of the office is 4.82m x 4.42m, providing a gross floor space of 21.3m2. I m
familiar with the property, having previously visited it for other purposes.

As Elliot is on the committee of TASCA he completed and filed with me a Conflict of
Interest Declaration, and asked that | undertake a market assessment, and if necessary,
negotiations on behalf of WWNAC.

THE TOOWOOMBA OFFICE RENTAL MARKET

Before entering into the negotiations over the office at 552-570 Anzac Avenue, Drayton, |
surveyed 182 commercial tenancies available for lease in Toowoomba.

Rental rates are governed by a variety of factors. Smaller properties tend to attract much
higher rents per m2 than larger properties. It is worth noting that the smallest office, of 9
m2 had the highest rent of $2,133.33 per m2. The next highest rent per m2 was a property
of 10 m2 for which the rent was $1,075 per m2.

Location is also a factor. All of the properties in the sample were in or near to the
Toowoomba CBD, and so will tend to cost more to rent than similar properties further from
the CBD.

Given this, | excluded from my survey any property over 40mz2 on the basis that these
properties would tend to attract a different rate per m2 from smaller offices. That resulted in
seven properties, which | considered. They are set out in a table below which shows the
location of the properties, the area, and the notional rent per m2 before GST.

Table 1. Sample of commercial properties in Toowoomba

Himalaya Consulting Pty Ltd (ACN 136 443 822)
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From: William

To: s22

Subject: Fwd: FOR COMPLETION - IAS Performance report for Activity 1D: 4-E9QZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli
Capacity Building Project

Date: Monday, 27 February 2023 4:28:57 PM

Begin forwarded message:

From: noreply.gps@fms.gov.au
Subject: FOR COMPLETION - IAS Performance report for Activity
ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity Building

Project

Date: 27 February 2023 at 3:19:36 pm AEST
To: " @himalayaconsulting.biz

Cc: S22 @official.niaa.gov.au

Dear Provider

Your Organisation is due to complete a Performance Report (the Report) with
the National Indigenous Australians Agency. This is a requirement as
specified in the Project Schedule of your Head Agreement with the Agency.

If your Organisation has multiple projects with the Agency you will receive
separate emails with a link to the Report for each project. Details of the
project will be displayed on the cover page of the Report together with a
unique identifier known as the Review ID.

If you have been asked to provide additional information or documentation in
support of your project, this may be attached to the Report before submitting.

The due date for the return of the Report and the reporting period are located
on the cover page of the Report. Please carefully follow the instructions
provided in the Report to successfully return it to the Agency.

Please use the following URL and Access Code to access your report:

OPA URL.: https://opa-web.dss.gov.au/opa/web-
determinations/startsession/FormAccess

Access Code: de20b486-56¢1-45ca-8e44-db6e6e294912

Please note — after you have used the above Access Code to begin your report
for the first time, you will also be asked to provide an Organisation ID as a
Password. This ID is the Provider Reference number (System ID) which can
be found on the front page of your NIAA Project Schedule.

If you require assistance in completing your review, please contact your
Agreement Manager on 1800 079 098 and quote your Review ID and/or
Activity ID.

Please do not reply to this email as it has been automatically generated.
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Level 1/36 East Street, ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700| PO Box 550 ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700
w. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of country
throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and community. We
pay our respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.

From:S22
Sent: Tuesday, 28 February 2023 1:34 PM
To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; William S47F himalayaconsulting.biz>

Subject: RE: Directors' power and directors' duties [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks S22

Bill I look forward to our conversation tomorrow. Are you able to advise whether the Chairperson
and/or Secretary will be on the call? | understand that there are internal governance issues,
however, | consider that a matter for the upcoming Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
(WWNAC) AGM. Although related, tomorrow’s discussion is an opportunity to meet them and
discuss the current agreement and any concerns they have (from a Board perspective).

As an aside, Bill | am concerned about your narrative highlighted in yellow in the below email.
Other context:

s22 took a call from you at Alpha on Friday with me being present in the car (stationary). You
advised that you would be sending out an email to ‘members’ advising of appropriate behaviour
to ensure the postponed AGM is successful. Over the past couple of weeks you have been

updating us on the AGM progress and S22 has been providing support with reporting.

Under no circumstances did we refer to ‘lateral violence or grill you on this subject’ (you, yourself
used this language) nor did we ask for ‘email evidence of your internal governance issues’.

We discussed your Risk Management and Performance Action Plan relating to the clauses on p2.
as follows:

Ongoing obligations of the WWNAC Board
1. Within three weeks of any change in the membership to the Board of WWNAC, the
board shall be required to resolve, by simple majority, to reaffirm its obligations

under the RMPAP.
2. Inthe event the Board fails to do within three weeks of any change of membership,
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any further funding obligations of NIAA under the RMPAP shall cease at that date.
We also asked you to confirm the new date for WWNAC’s AGM which we now know is 25/3/23.

| also specifically asked for you to arrange a meeting for me to meet the Chairperson and
Secretary, hence my question above relating to tomorrow’s meeting.

| offered support by way of a discussion with the Chairperson on how to manage a difficult AGM
with dissenting voices. You agreed that would be a good idea. We are sympathetic to and
understand the challenges of internal Community governance issues.

Yesterday you sent a number of emails toS22 relating to the upcoming WWNAC AGM, one of
which has been copied to info@oric.gov.au. The content relates to resolutions on changes to the
organisation’s Model Rules and specifically, Directors. Any involvement from ORIC will be a
WWNAC Board decision.

Our role is to manage any potential risks from the fallout from the WWNAC AGM through the Risk
Management and Performance Action Plan and to support the organisation going forward. In the
interest of transparency and working collaboratively with you and the Board, | felt that | needed
to give you my concerns in writing and also in the interest of ‘natural justice’ allow you a right of

reply.
Regards.

S22

Engagement Director

Central Queensland & Wide Bay Area | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.s22

e.s22 @official.niaa.gov.au

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

From:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 27 February 2023 2:22 PM
To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
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Subject: FW: Directors' power and directors' duties [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Importance: High

Fyi.

From: William847F @himalayaconsulting.biz>
Sent: Monday, 27 February 2023 11:22 AM

To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Subject: Fwd: Directors' power and directors' duties

Importance: High
Dears22
FYL. | shall forward other emails following.

Yours,

Bill

Begin forwarded message:

From: Williams47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Subject: Directors' power and directors' duties

Date: 26 February 2023 at 12:15:08 pm AEST

To: "Elliot Anderson $11C @wwnac.org.au)"$11C @wwnac.org.au>,
Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>, 811C  @wwnac.org.au,

$11C @wwnac.org.au, Erica Landerss11C @wwnac.org.au>, Elizabeth

Blucher$11C  @wwnac.org.au>, §11C @wwnac.org.au

Dear Directors,

As you know, | attend a monthly teleconference with the NIAA to review the
progress of the grant, and also the operations of WWNAC. Both of these are
important, not only for the continuation of the current grant, but as we come close
to having to negotiate a new grant.

I have to tell you that in our teleconference last week | got a grilling from NIAA over
what they refer to as “lateral violence” from some directors towards other directors.
They see this as totally unacceptable.

Having seen the email correspondence that has passed between the directors, and it
is clear that some directors do not understand the relationship between directors’
powers and directors’ duties. Given this may be the case, let me help you by making
clear the difference between the two.

The powers given to directors are subordinate to the directors’ duties. That means
these powers can only be exercised in fulfilment of the directors’ duties. The
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overriding duty of a director is to act in the best interests of the Corporation.
Specifically, section 265.5 of the CATSI Act provides, at sub-section (1):

(1) Adirector or other officer of an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
corporation must exercise his or her powers and discharge his or her duties:
(a) in good faith in the best interests of the corporation; and
(b) for a proper purpose.

Furthermore, section 265.10 provides, at sub-section (1):

(1) Adirector, secretary, other officer or employee of an Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander corporation must not improperly use his or her position
to:

(a) gain an advantage for himself or herself or someone else; or
(b) cause detriment to the corporation.

Put simply, if a director attempts to use their powers for anything other than the
best interests of the Corporation, then the attempted use of that power is invalid.
Pursuing personal vendettas would be an example of an invalid exercise of a
director’s powers, as would be attempting to do things which cannot legally be done.

There are serious financial penalties for breaches of both of the above sections.
These include fines of up to $200,000.

The CATSI Act goes further and provides in sub-section (1) of section 265.25 that
such conduct is a criminal offence which can result in five years in prison. To save
you the effort, the relevant part of the section reads:

(1) Adirector or other officer of an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
corporation commits an offence if he or she:

(a) is reckless; or

(b) is intentionally dishonest;

and fails to exercise his or her powers and discharge his or her duties:
(c) in good faith in the best interests of the corporation; or
(d) for a proper purpose.

Penalty: 2,000 penalty units or imprisonment for 5 years, or both.

So, attempting to call a board meeting to raise family law allegations which have
nothing to do with the Corporation is a not “good faith”. Also, where it does harm to
someone else this also constitutes “dishonest conduct”. This would therefore be
criminal behaviour under section 265.25.

A penalty point is $275. That means the fine could be up to $550,000, in addition to
possible gaol time.
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Raising all sorts of spurious allegations is also not "in the best interests of the
Corporation”, nor is it a “proper purpose”. That means that the director could be
subject to fines of up to $200,000 for doing that.

| would ask all directors to give serious consideration to whether their conduct
recently may have breached any of the above provisions of the Act. | have my own
views, but prefer to keep them to myself for now.

| will conclude by saying, when grilled about these matters by NIAA, that | refrained
from giving them the email correspondence | had. | did this for two reasons. The
first reason is it appeared to me that the some of the this conduct could cause real
damage to WWNAC, and jeopardise future funding. My other reason from not giving
making the email correspondence available to NIAA was the small possibility that the
people in question did not understand that they could only exercise their powers as
a director for the best interests of the Corporation. That obligation should now be
clear.

My brief has always been to help the directors, but more importantly to help
WWNAC itself. | am committed to doing this to the best of my ability. However, |
would be very grateful please if people do not do things which put me, and
yourselves, in a compromising position with the Commonwealth.

Yours,
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From: Desmond Dodds11C @wwnac.org.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 7 February 2023 2:38 PM

To:s11C  @clearyhoare.com.au;S11C @bigpond.com.au; williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>;
Desmond Dodds11C @wwnac.org.au>; Sharon McQueens11C @wwnac.org.au>; Wayne Saltner
s11C @wwnac.org.au>;s11C @wwnac.org.au>; Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>; Elizabeth

Bluchers11C  @wwnac.org.au>; Erica LandersS11C @wwnac.org.au>
Subject: Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (ICN 8263). 12.5. Delegation 13.2 (d)

Hi all Directors & Christine Royan , William O’Chee (Bill )
| Des Dodd Represent Descent Line Tommy (Father of Wonga Pope) I'm calling a 2 day BOD meeting to held on the

20t of February 2023 & 21° of February 2023 and for Chris Royan Service Provider and facilitate.

Date:20/2/23 & 21/2/23

Time: 9:00am Breakfast

10:00am meeting Starts

12:30pm Lunch 13:30pm

Meeting 13:30 to 15:30pm finish

Brisbane Minute Taker: Roslyn Shand (Ros)

Venue : Vintaged Bar + Grill, Level 6 Hilton Brisbane 190 Elizabeth Street Brisbane City Qld 4000

Guest: Aunty Mavis Pope , Aunty Casey Kathleen Clancy Nee Dodd , Aunty Roslyn Dodd , Step Mother/Mother Sharon

Dodd, Uncle Max Chapman , Aunty Hazel Lillian Greenland
Agenda

Clause: 12.5. Delegation 13.2 (d)

Clause: 11.1. General Duties

Clause: 14.4.2 Effectiveness of Acts by Secretaries

Clause: 15.1. Corporation may have common Seal

Clause: 16. Finances and Record Keeping

Clause 16.1 Application of funds and property

Clause: 16.2. Minutes of meetings

Clause: 16.3. Constitution and records about officers etc

Clause: 16.4. Financial records

Clause: 16.4.1. Obligations to keep financial records

Clause: 16.4.2 Period for which financial records must be retained

Clause: 16.5. Physical format

Clause:16.6. Place where records are kept

Clause:16.7. Right of access to corporation books by directors

Clause: 13.4. Chairing directors meeting

Thank you

Director

Desmond Dodd

Sent from Mail for Windows

Evolve:c12b933f-50fa-4cb8-be3c-7ea%e4719c46)
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From: s22

To: s22

Subject: FW: Meet Request by Members [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 27 February 2023 3:18:00 PM
Attachments: Members signed MTG Request.PDF

AGM notice 25032023.PDF

His22

Bill phoned me this morning regarding the email below, and | have arranged a meeting to discuss
his concerns. | asked whether Elliot and Brian would be part of the discussions, the attached
correspondence relates directly to them as Chairperson and Secretary.

Regards
S22

From: WilliamS4/F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>
Sent: Monday, 27 February 2023 11:29 AM
To:s2? @official.niaa.gov.au>
Subject: Fwd: Meet Request by Members

Dears22 ,

The adjourned AGM is the 25th March. This request for a Special General Meeting lobbed up
yesterday. You will note that there are no grounds set out for wanting to remove the two
directors. Also, the proposed rule change, which is almost certainly to fail, would preclude them
being involved in the Corporation in any way, appears to verge on oppressive conduct.

| am told that the Auburn Hawkwood AGM was held on the 18th February, and these signatures
are all dated the 19th February, and are all members of the Wulli Wulli #2 group. Wulli Wulli #2
are subject to a claim for recovery of legal expenses paid by WWNAC in securing their native title
interests. Thus, it would appear this is at least in part motivated by an attempt to avoid paying
back the money in question. It is also very clear that there is also an attempt to force a vacancy
on the board to allow a director who cannot be re-elected at the AGM to stay on the board.

| am of the view that both of these motivations constitute improper conduct or dishonest
conduct, or both.

Yours,

Bill

Begin forwarded message:
From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Subject: Fwd: Meet Request by Members
Date: 27 February 2023 at 9:28:37 am AEST
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To:s47F @himalayaconsulting.biz>, §11C
s11C clearyhoare.com.au>

Get Qutlook for iOS

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Sunday, February 26, 2023 9:55 am

To:s11C @bac-kgari.org>;$11C
s1l1C bigpond.com>

Subject: FW: Meet Request by Members

From: Robert Saltners11C mail.com>
Date: Saturday, 25 February 2023 at 11:23 am
To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Cc: Elliot AndersonS11C mail.com>,

s11C @outlook.comsS11C @outlook.com>,
Desmond Dodds11C @gmail.com>, Sharon McQueen
s11C @hotmail.com>, Cc: info <info@oric.gov.au>, Karen Collins
s11C mail.com>

Subject: Fwd: Meet Request by Members

Hi Directors
| had to resend as the secretary email bounced back as | didn't have.au

Kindest Regards
Robert Saltner

—————————— Forwarded message ---------
From: Robert Saltners11C mail.com>
Date: Sat, Feb 25, 2023 at 11:04 AM
Subject: Meet Request by Members

To: Brian Clancy <secretary@wwnac.org>, Elliot Anderson

s11C @gmail.com>,s11C @outlook.com

s11C @outlook.com>, Desmond Dodd

s11C @gmail.com>, Sharon McQueenS11C @hotmail.com>
Cc: info <info@oric.gov.au>, Karen Collins S11C mail.com>

Good morning Directors of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation

| wish to advise that Karen Collins and myself have been nominated by members
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From: s22

To: s22

Subject: FW: Performance reports from WWNAC [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Wednesday, 6 September 2023 2:33:34 PM

Attachments: Performance Report WWNAC to 30 June 2022.pdf
Performance Report WWNAC to 31 Dec 2022.pdf

Importance: High

From:S22

Sent: Thursday, 16 March 2023 2:34 PM

To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Performance reports from WWNAC [SEC=0OFFICIAL]
Importance: High

Good afternoon, S22
Attached to this email are the two performance reports for WWNAC.

Regards
S22

From: WilliamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Sent: Thursday, 16 March 2023 11:24 AM

To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc: Elliot Anderson $11C @wwnac.org.au) S11C @wwnac.org.au>; Secretary

<secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Subject: Performance reports from WWNAC

Importance: High

Dears22 ,

In the absence of being able to make the online forms work, | have taken a prior PDF
performance report and used it as a template for our reports for the periods ending 30th June,
2022, and 31st December, 2022. These forms are attached. Once again, | apologise for the
delay in providing these to you. We will be better prepared for the period ending 30th June,
2023l

If you have any queries, or spot any errors, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Many thanks,

William O’Chee

2B
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Success Stories
2. Does your Organisation have any success stories to share for this reporting period?
Please provide details below

Online performance report being submitted on behalf of the organisation by NIAA. Please attach supporting
documentation if available (e.g. photos, news clips, internal reports, case studies or good news stories): Responses
to this question will be used to identify innovation and better practices in service delivery. The Agency may also
use this information to publish good news stories on the NIAA website. Any content to be published will be
confirmed with your Organisation prior to publication. Please limit the size of attachments by not using logos and
complex formatting

[Please refer to the list of attached documents on the last page.] Step 2 Performance measures In this step you are
required to provide information about the performance of the activity during the reporting period below. The
following KPI's have been pre-filled in your Report and are all mandatory. Each of these fields has the following
validation to ensure the correct data has been entered. Please do not enter in any special characters or any
characters from A to Z as these will not be accepted by the field and will result in an error

Within the reporting period, the Board received an unanimously endorsed the strategic plan, in
particular, the recommendation that commercial activities should not be conducted by WWNAC
itself, but within a cultural and commercial operating entity.

The board also agreed to the principal recommendation of the strategic plan, the establishment of
an independently managed investment company and a new investment trust, to be operated as an
endowment fund to protect current assets of WWNAC, and to invest future revenue to provide for
Waulli Wulli people in the long term. The board resolved that an initial endowment of $300,000
would be made available to the investment company upon its incorporation and the creation of the
trust.

The board also engaged Marsh to undertake an enterprise risk revue of the organisation to further
the board's collective understanding of risk, with further training for directors to follow once the
report is received from Marsh.

The organisation commenced work during this period on an application to the ILSC for the transfer
of two freehold grazing properties within the Wulli Wulli native title area.

Criminal history checks were undertaken for all board members, and none had a reportable criminal
history.

Step 2 Performance measures

In this step you are required to provide information about the performance of the activity during the reporting
period below. The following KPI's have been pre-filled in your Report and are all mandatory. Each of these fields
has the following validation to ensure the correct data has been entered. Please do not enter in any special
characters or any characters from A to Z as these will not be accepted by the field and will result in an error

Any errors on the page either through not providing a value or providing an incorrect value will prevent navigation
to the next page.

3. MKDI.D1 - Employment Number
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N/A - to be answered by the Agency:

8. D106.01 - In-House Advisory Support

Number of individual businesses and organisations in the reporting period that received in-house
advisory support under the activity: N/A

9. D106.02 - Professional Services

Number of individual businesses and organisations in the reporting period that received
professional advice under the activity: N/A

10. D106.03 - Events / Activities

Number of individual events / activities run under the activity in the reporting period: N/A

11. D106.04 - Collaborative Partnerships
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Proportion (%) of hours worked in the reporting period that were worked by an Indigenous person,
under the activity: 71.3%
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12. P106.08 - Quality of Support.

Proportion (%) of supported businesses satisfied with the level of support received in the reporting
period:
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

The board's major achievement during the reporting period was negotiating a complete unwind of its ill-
fated investment in IWS. This was negotiated by the Chairman and Secretary, and resulted in: (1) a
cancellation of all share transfers; (2) a refund of monies paid by WWNAC for the purchase of shares; (3)
a cancellation of all debt for the future purchase of shares. This should be considered a very good
outcome in terms of indigenous capacity, as it was solely negotiate by the Chairman and the Secretary
with legal advice from the organisation's corporate lawyers.

As a result of this, and measures taken to control costs, the corporation made a profit for the first time in
six years, recording an increase in member equity of over $800,000 in the financial year to 30th June.

Whereas the auditor was unwilling to express an opinion on the previous financial report (because of
uncertainty about the asset value of the IWS shares), this year's financial report received an unqualified
audit report. Again, this is a sign of management improvements and an increasingly capable board.

Another success has been communication from the ILSC indicating that they may be willing to transfer a
grazing property within the Wulli Wulli area to WWNAC or the investment company, upon the members
voting to accept it at the forthcoming AGM.

The AGM will also be asked to make changes to the organisation's Rule Book which were identified by the
organisation's lawyers and consultants in order to more properly represent the members.

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
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Total number of females employed under the activity, in the reporting period: 3

Total number of males employed under the activity, in the reporting period: 5

Total number of indeterminate/intersex/unspecified employed under the activity, in the reporting
period: Nil

Total number of Indigenous females employed under the activity, in the reporting period: 2

Total number of Indigenous males employed under the activity, in the reporting period: 2

Total number of Indigenous indeterminate/intersex/unspecified employed under the activity, in the
reporting period: Nil

4. MKDI.D2 - Hours Worked - Indigenous Staff

Number of hours worked by all Indigenous people employed under the activity,
in the reporting period: 230

5. MKDI.D3 - Hours Worked - All Staff

Number of hours worked in the reporting period by all people employed under the activity, in the
reporting period: 360.25

6. MKPI1.M1 - Indigenous Employment

Proportion (%) of hours worked in the reporting period that were worked by an Indigenous person,
under the activity: 63.8%

7. MKPI1.M2 - Core Service Provision
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
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Number of third parties with whom a collaborative partnership has been formed under the activity
in the reporting period: 6

Further information.

The following information relates to the period 1st July, 2022 to 31st December, 2022.

During this period, WWNAC worked with its consultants to implement the strategic plan.

MKDI.D1 - Employment Number

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

MKDI.D2 - Hours Worked - Indigenous Staff

Number of hours worked by all Indigenous people employed under the activity, in the reporting
period: 230

MKDI.D3 - Hours Worked - All Staff

Number of hours worked in the reporting period by all people employed under the activity, in the
reporting period: 360.25

MKPI.M1 - Indigenous Employment
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
To: s47F @himalayaconsulting.biz
Cc: Secretary;$11C @wwnac.org.au; S22
Subject: FW: PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL - Minutes of June Meeting [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
Date: Friday, 31 May 2024 2:54:45 PM
Attachments: image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

Good afternoon, Bill.
As discussed, please find a copy of the email sent yesterday afternoon.

Regards
s22

From:S22

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 4:44 PM

To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL - Minutes of June Meeting [SEC=0OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Good afternoon, Elizabeth.

Thank you for taking the time to speak with§22  and | this afternoon.

As discussed, the document provided to NIAA was actual notes from June 2023 monthly meeting
held between WWNAC and NIAA as part of the Risk Management Performance Action Plan.

The NIAA is unable to provide approval for the renumeration for the work being undertaken by
yourself, this is a decision for your Board.

If you require any further information, please contact me.

Regards
S22

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 9:48 AM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL - Minutes of June Meeting [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Thank you

Secretary Elizabeth Blucher
Waulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 83 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 9

PO Box 13
MOURA, QLD. 4718

secretary@wwnac.org.au

sl11C
From:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 9:40 PM
To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL - Minutes of June Meeting [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Good evening Elizabeth,

Thanks for your call this afternoon. As discussed | have now had a read. $22 and | will discuss
this matter and follow up with you tomorrow.

Regards.
S22

s22
Engagement Director| Central Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22 m.S22
e.822 @official.niaa.gov.au

Level 1/36 East Street, ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700]| PO Box 550 ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700
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
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 1:22 PM
To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

@official.niaa.gov.au>
Subject: PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL - Minutes of June Meeting
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AfternoonS22 andS22

Attached are Minutes from June 2023 when | first became Secretary of the WWNAC
Board.

In doing so it was raised at the meeting that | would take on the Interim Secretary role
to open the Office in Moura as Office Secretary until Bill put forward a PD for an Office
Secretary.

Chris Royan had mentored me through a couple of sessions, but in doing so | wanted a
something out of being Mentored, maybe a Stat Dec or something to the effect of a
Certificate stating things | achieved but never got anything.

My time since those couple of times has been very time consuming, especially as |
had to deal with BDO Examination, ORIC AUDIT, AGM 2023, catching up with the
Bookkeeper requirements, Working on Grant Projects as well as everyday Board
issues and Proponents.

In saying all this, am | able to be reimbursed for the time spent doing this work as it
had been stated in Minutes. Or what do you think would be fair and reasonable, since
June last year, and can it come out of the NIAA as it was before the December cutoff
date.

| will take on advice you can give me. | have not ccd anyone else into this email for
purpose of Control from others.

| will wait to hear from you.

Kind Regards

Secretary Elizabeth Blucher

Waulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
PO Box 13

MOURA, QLD. 4718

secretary@wwnac.org.au
s47F

IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or
other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the
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From: s22

To: s22

Subject: FW: Request for variation WWNAC grant - re contract reviews [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 26 September 2023 4:20:27 PM

Good afternoon, S22
| will give you a call around this request.

Regards
S22

From:S4/F s4/F @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Sent: Tuesday, 26 September 2023 4:09 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc: Elliot Anderson S11C @wwnac.org.au>; Elizabeth Bluchers11C  @wwnac.org.au>
Subject: Request for variation WWNAC grant - re contract reviews

Dears22

| refer to my telephone discussion with you today, and confirm that the Chairman and Secretary
wish to have the corporation’s solicitor undertake a review of all of the contracts currently on
foot between WWNAC and its various contractors. These are principally those delivering
services under the NIAA grant, and also the “service provider” Cultural Pathways.

This course of action was recommended by the solicitor and | fully endorse it. It will add to the
governance of the corporation, and reduce its risk profile.

Can you please approve a variation from the budget to cover this work? | do not have quote on
this, as it will be subject to ordinary time cost charges, but | expect it should cost less than
$5,000.

Yours,

William O’Chee

Bl Br
Partner
Himalaya Consulting

Mob: s47F
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From: s22

To: s22

Cc: s22

Subject: FW: Signed WWNAC NIAA Deed of Variation [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 9 January 2023 12:44:25 PM

Attachments: Executed Variation 1 Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation.pdf
His22

This is the copy of the signed variation for WWNAC.

Regards
S22

From:S22

Sent: Tuesday, 15 November 2022 11:11 AM

To: 'William'S47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Cc:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; Elliot Anderson
<Elliot@wwnac.org.au>; Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>; Christine Royan
<christineroyan@bigpond.com>

Subject: RE: Signed WWNAC NIAA Deed of Variation [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good morning Bill and All
Attached to this email is the executed copy of the variation for WWNAC’s records.

Regards
S22

From: Williams47F himalayaconsulting.biz>
Sent: Monday, 14 November 2022 4:18 PM

To:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; Elliot Anderson

S11C @wwnac.org.au>; Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>; Christine Royan
s1l1C bigpond.com>

Subject: Signed WWNAC NIAA Deed of Variation
Importance: High

Dears22 &S22
Please find herewith the Deed of Variation signed and dated the 9th November, 2022 by the
Chairman and Secretary of WWNAC as requested. We apologise for the delay. It had to first be

approved by the Board.

Could you please be so kind as to send the NIAA signed copy to Elliot, Brian and me at your
earliest convenience?
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Now that we have executed our copy of the Deed, we have proceeded to pay outstanding
invoices, and | shall be in a position to give you a financial update this week.

Many thanks,

William O’Chee

2 BR

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F
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From: William O"Chee

To: Elliot Anderson; Elizabeth Blucher; Erica Landers; Sharon McQueen
Subject: Insider trading and payments to directors

Date: Friday, 1 September 2023 1:09:33 PM

Dear All,

There seems to be some misunderstanding about what constitutes “insider trading”.

Insider trading is defined in section 1013 of the Corporations Act 2001, and is limited to
situations where a person has information which is not generally known, which might
affect the price of a share, and that person uses that information to buy or sell that share for
their advantage. That’s a rough paraphrase, and I shall cover this in detail in the board
meeting on Monday.

It is not insider trading for a director to make a payment to themselves or another director
for an amount which is properly payable or owed by the company. Any suggestion to that
effect is totally untrue.

Similarly, it is totally untrue that such payments must be made through a third party,
because in the end you have to reimburse the third party anyway. In fact, such
arrangements have the tendency to reduce transparency, and can leave the board open to
allegations of money laundering or other misconduct.

In directing payments from the NIAA account | have always requested the payment be
made; provided a reference for the payment; as well as setting out the reason for the
payment. This is for the protection of the directors, and for maximum transparency for the
members and the Commonwealth.

I hope this gives you some confidence in what you can do as directors. If you have any
queries please feel free to call me.

Yours,
Bill

Sent from my iPhone
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From: William

To: s22

Cc: S22

Subject: Letter to NIAA

Date: Friday, 24 March 2023 1:32:14 PM
Attachments: Letter to NIAA.pdf

Dear S22

I had sent this to you on the 6th March, but ti clearly failed to make your inbox.

Have a great weekend,

William O’Chee

EEE S

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F
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Our Ref: DLP:WULO0011

24 February 2022

Attention: S22
National Indigenous Australians Agency

By email: compliance@niaa.gov.au

Dear S22

Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project — Activity ID 4-E9ZUEFC

We refer to recent correspondence in relation to the above matter.

With respect, your letter dated 14 November 2022 did not answer any of the questions asked in our
letter dated 25 October 2022 and so we repeat them:

1. What are the facts, matters and circumstances relied upon to form the assertion that the
“Acquittal Balance” was $767,7207?

2. Who made the determination and on what basis?
3. Why would NIAA pay $767,720 more than what had been approved?
4. Does NIAA assert that our client has not used the funds for particular uses to which the funds

were provided?
5. Does the purported debt relate to deliverables which are alleged to be not yet delivered?

We note that question 3 was asked because it appears that NIAA made a determination that $767,720
was paid above approval but NIAA had not determined that the funds were not used in accordance
with the Agreement. Please clarify.

You make the bare allegation that the amount of $767,720 was unapproved expenditure because no
service was delivered by IWS and you connect that with there having been no deliverables met under
the Agreement — but you have ignored our questions 4 and 5 above. Which deliverables under the
Agreement were intended to be met through payment of $767,7207?

You assert that NIAA had a discussion with Mr O’Chee during which NIAA informed Mr O’Chee that
$767,720 was unapproved expenditure but: who made that determination prior to the discussion,
when was the determination made, who made the statement to Mr O’Chee and when was the
discussion? Further, you assert that “Wulli Wulli informed NIAA that no service had been delivered...”
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From: William
To: s22 1822 ; Elliot Anderson; Elizabeth Blucher; Lesley Johnston
Subject: NIAA account reconciliation 1 July 2023 to date
Date: Wednesday, 15 May 2024 6:49:10 PM
Attachments: Invoice reconciliation for NIAA 1 July 2023 to close.xIsx
Bank Statements Wulli Wulli.pdf
Importance: High
Dear All,

Please find herewith the completed reconciliation of payments through the NIAA account
from 1 July 2023. This is contained in the attached spreadsheet. Also attached are the
bank statements.

The speadsheet contains three sheets: a list of authorised invoices, a summary of all
payments out of the account, and a list of three unidentified payments out.

Although there are three unidentified transactions where payments have come out of the
NIAA account, | can state that these seem to be simple accounting errors. One of the
unidentified payments seems to be an invoice from Venturer Technology which was not
forwarded to me, but sent directly to WWNAC and paid from the NIAA account. The
amount is small and this seems an oversight. The other two payments seem to be
payments which were erroneously made from the NIAA account, but which should have
been paid out of WWNAC’s general account.

I also not there was one payment into the NIAA account in the amount of $4,166.65
which should have been paid to the WWNAC general account.

There are also five invoices, each in the amount of $833.33 and payable to Venturer
Technology which were paid twice - on the 20th September 2023 and on the 3rd October
2023. These payments were clearly in error, and as a result, VVenturer has been overpaid
$4,166.65.

Finally, there were two invoices from Bunygah Pty Ltd which were authorised but not paid
for some reason. These were in the amounts of $500.00 and $15,000.00. These were
submitted and authorised well before the end of December 2023.

Similarly, there is also an invoice from Cleary Hoare in the amount of $24,750.00 which
relates to work done before the end of December, but for which I was chasing them for a
conforming invoice for months, and it was not received until February this year.

Other than that, there are no discrepancies on this account, and the three errors are within
the normal range of what one would expect when a company is operating three or four
different bank accounts.

Many thanks for your patience,

William O’Chee

EEE S

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F
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This document was exported from Numbers. Each table was converted to an Excel spreadsheet. All
other objects on each Numbers sheet were placed on separate work sheets. Please be aware that
formula calculations may differ in Excel.

Numbers Sheet Name Numbers Table Name Excel Spreadsheet Name

Table 1 Invoice Reconciliation

Table 1 List of Bank Transactions

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI

Table 1 Unident. Bank Transactions

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 95 of 258



CHEIEAL

Document 14A

Table 1
Supplier Invoice Number Date Paid Value Amount Paid O:t:::::itng Hours Indigenous | Hours Non-Indigenous Hours Male Hours Female
Toyota Finance 7117123 $2438.93 $2438.93 $0.00
Toyota Finance 8/15/23 $2793.79 $2793.79 $0.00
Himalaya Consulting NIA005 8/22/23 $2423.50 $2423.50 $0.00
Erica Landers SEPBD1-4 9/1/23 $450.50 $450.50 $0.00
Elizabeth Blucher SEPBD1-3 9/1/23 $600.00 $600.00 $0.00
Elliot Anderson SEPBD1-5 9/1/23 $212.50 $212.50 $0.00
Sharon McQueen SEPBD1-4 9/1/23 $600.00 $600.00 $0.00
Grand Chancellor SEPBD1-6 9/1/23 $1936.00 $1936.00 $0.00
Toyota Finance 9/15/23 $1088.60 $1088.60 $0.00
Venturer Technologies INV2697 9/20/23 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00
Venturer Technologies INV2620 9/20/23 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00
Venturer Technologies INV2455 9/20/23 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00
Venturer Technologies INV2113 9/20/23 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00
Venturer Technologies INV2530 9/20/23 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00
The Family Office P/L Moura Lease 9/27/23 $18000.00 $18000.00 $0.00
Bunyugah WWNAC_04 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 2 2
Bunyugah WWNAC_03 3/10/2023 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 2.75 2.75
Bunyugah WWNAC_05 3/10/2023 $550.00 $550.00 $0.00 2.75 2.75
Bunyugah WWNAC_06 3/10/2023 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 6 6
Bunyugah WWNAC_07 3/10/2023 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 10 10
Venturer Technologies INV 2697 3/10/2023 $0.00 $833.33 -$833.33 8 8
Venturer Technologies INV 2620 3/10/2023 $0.00 $833.33 -$833.33 8 8
Venturer Technologies INV 2455 3/10/2023 $0.00 $833.33 -$833.33 8 8
Venturer Technologies INV 2113 3/10/2023 $0.00 $833.33 -$833.33 8 8
Venturer Technologies INV 2530 3/10/2023 $0.00 $833.33 -$833.33 8 8
Venturer Technologies INV 2784 4/10/2023 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00 8 8
Toyota Finance 16/01/2024 $2,940.14 $2,940.14 $0.00

FOI/2324/059

OfHiBIAL

Page 96 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



CHEIEAL

Document 14A

Venturer Technologies INV 2869 7/11/2023 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00 8 8

Toyota Finance 15/11/2023 $1,711.46 $1,711.46 $0.00

Toyota Finance 15/11/2023 $2,361.88 $2,361.88 $0.00

Venturer Technologies 8/01/2024 $833.33 $833.33 $0.00 8 8

Malu Pty Ltd 38 8/01/2024 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 50 50

Bunyugah Pty Ltd WWNAC_StratPla $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 15 15

n23

Bunyugah Pty Ltd WWNAC_0823 8/01/2024 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 125 125

Bunyugah Pty Ltd WWNAC_0124 8/01/2024 $950.00 $950.00 $0.00 9.5 9.5

Bunyugah Pty Ltd WWNAC_1023 8/01/2024 $2100.00 $2100.00 $0.00 21 21

Bunyugah Pty Ltd WWNAC_0923 8/01/2024 $700.00 $700.00 $0.00 7 7

Cleary Hoare WUL0012 $24,750.00 $0.00 $24,750.00 10 10 10
Toyota Finance 15/01/2024 $2,401.19 $2,401.19 $0.00

Toyota Finance 15/02/2024 $2,050.72 $2,050.72 $0.00

Himalaya Consulting |NIA007 1/8/24 $5,776.00 $5,776.00 $0.00

Himalaya Consulting |NIA007 2/14/24 $159.00 $159.00 $0.00

Wilson Lawyers B10002298 11/7/23 $4,537.50 $4,537.50 $0.00

WWNAC OCTBD1-5 11/2/23 $908.67 $908.67 $0.00

Elliot Anderson OCTBD 1-1 10/24/23 $342.98 $342.98 $0.00

Sharon McQueen OCTBD 1-2 10/24/23 $274.98 $274.98 $0.00

Erica Landers OCTBD 1-3 10/24/23 $180.71 $180.71 $0.00

Elizabeth Blucher OCTBD 1-4 10/24/23 $274.98 $274.98 $0.00

TOTAL S 121,130.67 | $ 85,047.32 | $ 36,083.35 23.50 189.00 212.50 10.00
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Bank Transactions from 1 July 2023 to 15 February 2024

For WWNAC Bank Account ending '8682

Date Transaction Debits

7/17/23 |Toyota Finance 2,438.93
8/15/23 |Toyota Finance 2,793.79
8/22/23 |NIA005 2,423.50
1/09/2023 |SEPBD1-4 450.50
1/09/2023 |SEPBD1-3 600.00
1/09/2023 |SEPBD1-5 212.50
1/09/2023 |SEPBD1-4 600.00
9/15/23 |Toyota Finance 1,088.60
9/20/23 |INV2697 833.33
9/20/23 |INV2620 833.33
9/20/23 |INV2455 833.33
9/20/23 |INV2113 833.33
9/20/23 |INV2530 833.33
9/27/23 | Moura lease 18,000.00
3/10/2023 'WWNACO05 550.00
3/10/2023 | INV2697 833.33
3/10/2023 INV2620 833.33
3/10/2023 INV2455 833.33
3/10/2023 INV2113 833.33
3/10/2023 INV2530 833.33
3/10/2023 'WWNACO03 1,000.00
3/10/2023 'WWNACO06 1,200.00
3/10/2023 '\WWNACO07 2,000.00
4/10/2023 INV2734 11.95
4/10/2023 | INV2784 833.33
16/10/2024 | Toyota Finance 2,940.14
24/10/2023 |OctBDI-2 274.98
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24/10/2023
24/10/2023
24/10/2023
2/11/2023
7/11/2023
7/11/2023
15/11/2023
13/12/2023
15/12/2023
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
8/01/2024
15/01/2024
14/02/2024
14/02/2024
14/02/2024
15/02/2024

OctBDI-1

Oct BDI-3
OctBDI-4
OCTBD1-5
Inv2869

Inv BI0002298
Toyota Finance
INV2869

Toyota Finance
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
Toyota Finance
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
INTERNET TFR
Toyota Finance
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342.98
180.71
274.98
908.67
833.33
4,537.50
1,711.46
833.33
2,361.88
10,000.00
5,776.00
2,100.00
1,250.00
950.00
833.33
700.00
2,401.19
3,368.00
223.85
159.90
2,050.72
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Unidentified Bank Transactions from 30 September 2023 to 15 February 2024

For WWNAC Bank Account ending '8682

Date Transaction Debits

4/10/2023 INV2734 11.95
14/02/2024 INTERNET TFR 3,368.00
14/02/2024 INTERNET TFR 223.85
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From: s22
To: s11C @wwnac.org.au; §47F @himalayaconsulting.biz
Cc: s22
Subject: OVERDUE - 1AS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC - Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project
Date: Friday, 8 September 2023 8:09:22 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.pna

image004.pna

image005.pna

image006.png

Good morning Elliot,
Was good yarning with you yesterday.

I am sending you this email as NIAA have not received a completed Performance Report from your organisation
for the following grant:

. Activity ID: 4-ESZUEFC
o Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project

As such, | would be grateful if you could please complete the online Performance Report in the Portal by COB 15
September 2023. This report was due 15/07/2023. The reporting period is for 01/01/2023 to 30/06/2023.

Please see below logon and access details:

. Access link - https://opa-web.dss.gov.au/opa/web-determinations/startsession/FormAccess
o Access code - e198c59a-caa9-4f7b-a290-e5540fc6d9a7
o Password — 4-CW04TWC

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any issues accessing this report.

Regards,

s22 | Senior Agreement Manager

Brisbane Team | Grants Management Unit | Operations and Delivery Portfolio
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.822

Level 19 215 Adelaide St Brisbane QLD 4001| GPO Box 9932 BRISBANE QLD 4000

W. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional
owners and custodians of country throughout Australia and acknowledges
their continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay our
respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and
emerging.

© @ 0 ©
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From: s22

To: Secretary; S$11€ @wwnac.org.au

Cc: s22 s22 william

Subject: RE: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity
Building Project [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Monday, 29 January 2024 4:53:59 PM

Good afternoon, Elizabeth, and Elliott.
Thank you for your email this morning Elizabeth, sorry | was unable to respond due to travelling.

The performance and acquittal reports were being completed by Bill. | encourage you to contact
Bill to get an update on the progress of the reports.

Let me know if you need any further information.

Regards

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 3:31 PM

To: williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Re: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli
Wulli Capacity Building Project

Get Outlook for Android

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 9:07:07 AM

To: williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Subject: Fwd: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli

Wulli Capacity Building Project

Get Outlook for Android

From: noreply.gps@dss.fms.gov.au <noreply.gps@dss.fms.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 9:01:44 AM

To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au S22 official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity 1D: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli
Capacity Building Project

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 102 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 16

Dear Grantee

Our records indicate that we have not received a completed Performance Report from your
organisation for the following grant:

Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC
Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project.

Completing the Report is a requirement as specified in the Project Schedule of your Head
Agreement.

If you have recently submitted your completed Report to the Agency, or require more time
to provide it, please contact your NIAA Agreement Manager to clarify the situation.

A failure to complete this Report may lead to delays in the release of future grant payments
to your organisation.

Please do not reply to this email as it has been automatically generated.

Kind regards
NIAA IAS Performance Reports

Email: IASPerformanceReports@niaa.gov.au
Web: https://www.niaa.gov.au
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From: William

To: Secretary

Cc: Elliot Anderson; s22 ;S22

Subject: Re: Draft memo regarding remuneration of Secretary
Date: Friday, 7 June 2024 10:14:46 AM

Dear Elizabeth,

I am just waiting on Elliot to reply to me on whether he wants this to go to the whole
Board or just to him and you, given there was a change in the composition of the Board in
February.

I should sent it out today.

Yours,

Bill

On 7 Jun 2024, at 7:21 AM, Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au> wrote:
Morning Bill,
Just wondering what the outcome is so I can look into further actions.

Kind Regards
Elizabeth Blucher

Get Outlook for Android

From: William S4/F himalayaconsulting.biz>

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 3:27:29 PM

To: Elliot Anderson <Elliot@wwnac.org.au>; Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Cc:S22 irwin@official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Draft memo regarding remuneration of Secretary

Dear Elliot and Elizabeth,

Please find herewith a draft memo regarding remunerating Elizabeth as an
office administrator.

I have sent this to you as a draft in case there are particular points where
further information may be needed. If that si so please contact me tonight, and
maybe we can have a phone link up between with the three of us.

There is a clear way forward to appoint Elizabeth, but we must act within the
law. In this regard, note that I strongly support Wulli Wulli people
undertaking the administrative tasks, and hope that this memo makes that
happen as soon as possible.
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Bill
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From: s22
To: Secretary
Cc: Ricky Prout; Elliot Anderson; william
Subject: RE: Moura Office [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 13 October 2023 5:14:48 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

Good afternoon, Elizabeth.
Firstly, thank you for the email below and the telephone conversation on Thursday afternoon.
| have been in contact with Bill, and he will respond to your email over the next couple of days.

In relation to the three quotes for the purchase of office equipment, this approach will ensure
the market for the goods or services will satisfy that you are achieving value for money with a
chosen supplier.

Please let me know if you need any further information.

Regards.

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Wednesday, 4 October 2023 12:01 PM

To: williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Cc:S47F @venttech.com.au>; Elliot Anderson S11C @wwnac.org.au>;522
s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Moura Office

Afternoon Bill,

Could you let us know what the hold up is on moving Office Furniture to the Moura Office is
please?

| am working out of my lounge room and all we are seeing is wasted rent for an office, | cant go
there and sit on the floor

With no furniture or internet etc. Please help us to move forward. The process has taken long
enough.

Kind Regards
Elizabeth Blucher

Secretary Elizabeth Blucher

Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
PO Box 173

THEODORE, QLD, 4714

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 106 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



FOI/2324/059

OFFICIAL

secretary@wwnac. org.au
s11C

OFFICIAL

Document 18

Page 107 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 19

From: William

To: s22

Cc: s22 s47F @gmail.com; Brian Clancy; Brian Clancy; S22 ;S22
s22 ;s11C

Subject: Re: NIAA & WWNAC MONTHLY MEETINGS

Date: Saturday, 28 January 2023 10:44:26 PM

Yes please.

On 27 Jan 2023, at 1:54 pm, S22
<S22 @official.niaa.gov.au> wrote:

Hi All

Just setting the 2022 monthly invites into our respective calendars. le second
Tuesday of each month. Please let me know if this day/time doesn’t work and | will
adjust according to the majority.

TEAMS meeting invite below.

Suggested Agenda Items:
1. Welcome and Acknowledgement of Country
2. RMPAP - discussion
a. WWNAC Update
b. NIAA feedback
3. Other Business
4. Reminder next meeting time/date

Kindest Regards

s22 | A/Senior Adviser

South Queensland Region | Central Queensland & Wide Bay Areas | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22 m.s22

Level 1/36 East Street ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700| PO Box 550 ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700

Ww. hiaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

<image002.jpg>

<image003.png>
The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the
traditional owners and custodians of country throughout
Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to
land, waters and community. We pay our respects to the
people, the cultures and the elders past, present and
emerging.

<image004.png> <image005.png> <image006.png> <image007.png>

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 108 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL

Document 19

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Join with a video conferencing device

762430305@t.plcm.vc

Video Conference ID: 134 257 438 5
Alternate VTC instructions

Or call in (audio only)
+612 8318 0003, 754479781# Australia, Sydney

Phone Conference ID: 754 479 781#
Find a local number | Reset PIN

Learn More | Meeting options

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
message from your computer system.

_<Mail Attachment.ics><20211214 WWNAC signed RMPAP.pdf>
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From: William

To: Elizabeth Blucher

Cc: s22 s47F

Subject: Re: NIAA account reconciliation 1 July 2023 to date
Date: Thursday, 23 May 2024 2:22:17 PM
CORRECTION.

Apologies, as | had not seen them attached to the bottom of Elizabeth’s email until after |
sent mine.

Yes, all of these things were discussed in advance, and were also agreed withe NIAA as
valid under the grant, since they related to improving contracts and governance.

Yours,

Bill

On 21 May 2024, at 3:50 PM, Elizabeth Blucher S11C  @wwnac.org.au>
wrote:

Hi Bill,
Can you confirm whether or not | can pay these invoices please.

Elizabeth Blucher

From:s11C @wilsonlawyers.net.au>
Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 8:07 AM

To: Elizabeth BlucherS11C  @wwnac.org.au>

Cc: Elliot Andersons11C @wwnac.org.au>

Subject: RE: NIAA account reconciliation 1 July 2023 to date

Elizabeth,

I've taken some time to review my firm’s invoices because some of them
don’t appear on the spreadsheet.

I've attached three invoices which don’'t appear and one invoice which
does. My notes as follows:

1. Invoice BI0002298 — this was paid and noted in Bill's spreadsheet. |
had to review in detail because the “Invoice Reconciliation” tab seems
to change date format from row 43 onwards.

2. Invoice BI0002476 — this was not paid and not noted in Bill's
spreadsheet. This was my review of the Toowoomba lease. Bill stated
that this was part of NIAA funding hence the bold underlined
comment on the letter.
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3. Invoice BI0002367 — this was not paid and not noted in Bill's
spreadsheet. This was a continuation of the contract review advice.
Bill stated that this was part of NIAA funding hence the bold
underlined comment on the letter.

4. Invoice BI0002017 — this was not paid and not noted in Bill's
spreadsheet. This was a review of the Moura lease. Bill stated that
this was part of NIAA funding though it does not have the same bold
underlined comment because a different team in my firm did the work
and did not do so.

| don’t know why Bill has omitted the three above invoices from his
acquittal. It may be that they were not passed on to Bill or some other
reason.

Can you please review your records to see if you did in fact forward
the invoices to Bill for approval.

If you did, you will need to “reply all” to Bill's email, attach the invoices and
copy/paste my comments in the numbered paragraphs. Also, the problem is
that if he forgot those invoices, what other invoices has he forgotten? Has
he done a proper, thorough job of the acquittal process?

If you didn’t, you will need to “reply all” to Bill's email, attach the invoices
and acknowledge that you forgot to pass them on but they need to be part
of the acquittal process.

Can you please forward your email to me once sent.

s11C

Associate

Phones11C
s11C @uwilsonlawyers.net.au

<image001.png>

Ground Floor, 32 Logan Road, Woolloongabba Qld 4102
PO Box 1757, Coorparoo BC Qld 4151

www wilsonlawyers.net.au

Warning: Queensland Law Society has advised that scammers have been hacking email
accounts of law firms and substituting bank account details with their own bank account details.
Although this has not happened to our firm, in order to protect you and your funds from being
fraudulently misappropriated by scammers, please DO NOT deposit money to an account
nominated by us or any other party without first verifying the bank account details with us by
telephone. Our trust account details and telephone number will always remain the same. We
will also not use bank account details supplied by you without verification by telephone.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under professional standards legislation.

This e-mail and any attachments are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the intended
recipient. It may also be subject to legal professional privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any
use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail and any attachments is strictly
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prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the
e-mail and any attachments from your computer. Whilst we have taken precautions to alert us to the
presence of computer viruses, we cannot guarantee that this email and any attachments are free from
such viruses.

From:s11C @wwnac.org.au>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 7:42 PM
To:s11C @wilsonlawyers.net.au>

Subject: FW: NIAA account reconciliation 1 July 2023 to date
Importance: High

Afternoons11C

Received from Bill tonight.
Some oversights from myself paying invoices involved.
You will probably work it out, i did.

Kind Regards
s11C

From: Williams4/7F @himalayaconsulting.biz>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 6:47 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>;

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au; Elliot Anderson S11C @wwnac.org.au>;
Elizabeth Bluchers11C @wwnac.org.au>; Lesley Johnston

s11C bigpond.com>

Subject: NIAA account reconciliation 1 July 2023 to date
Importance: High

Dear All,

Please find herewith the completed reconciliation of payments through
the NIAA account from 1 July 2023. This is contained in the attached
spreadsheet. Also attached are the bank statements.

The speadsheet contains three sheets: a list of authorised invoices, a
summary of all payments out of the account, and a list of three
unidentified payments out.

Although there are three unidentified transactions where payments have
come out of the NIAA account, | can state that these seem to be simple
accounting errors. One of the unidentified payments seems to be an
invoice from Venturer Technology which was not forwarded to me, but
sent directly to WWNAC and paid from the NIAA account. The amount is
small and this seems an oversight. The other two payments seem to be
payments which were erroneously made from the NIAA account, but
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which should have been paid out of WWNAC’s general account.

| also not there was one payment into the NIAA account in the amount of
$4,166.65 which should have been paid to the WWNAC general account.

There are also five invoices, each in the amount of $833.33 and payable
to Venturer Technology which were paid twice - on the 20th September
2023 and on the 3rd October 2023. These payments were clearly in error,
and as a result, Venturer has been overpaid $4,166.65.

Finally, there were two invoices from Bunygah Pty Ltd which were
authorised but not paid for some reason. These were in the amounts of
$500.00 and $15,000.00. These were submitted and authorised well
before the end of December 2023.

Similarly, there is also an invoice from Cleary Hoare in the amount of
$24,750.00 which relates to work done before the end of December, but
for which | was chasing them for a conforming invoice for months, and it
was not received until February this year.

Other than that, there are no discrepancies on this account, and the
three errors are within the normal range of what one would expect when a
company is operating three or four different bank accounts.

Many thanks for your patience,

William O’Chee

Bl Br

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F

<Tax Invoice 24.11.2023 Bill number BI0002367.pdf><Tax Invoice
18.12.2023 (1) Bill number BI0002476.pdf><Tax Invoice 2 01.11.2023 Bill
number B10002298.pdf><Bill number B10002017-F98957.pdf>
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S22

From: s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, 29 January 2024 4:54 PM

To: Secretary; S11€ @wwnac.org.au

Cc: s22 ; william

Subject: RE: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title:

Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good afternoon, Elizabeth, and Elliott.
Thank you for your email this morning Elizabeth, sorry | was unable to respond due to travelling.

The performance and acquittal reports were being completed by Bill. | encourage you to contact Bill to get an
update on the progress of the reports.

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

Subject: Re: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity
Building Project

Get Outlook for Android

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 9:07:07 AM

To: williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Fwd: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity
Building Project

Get Outlook for Android

From: noreply.gps@dss.fms.gov.au <noreply.gps@dss.fms.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 9:01:44 AM

To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: OVERDUE - IAS Performance report for Activity ID: 4-E9ZUEFC, Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity Building
Project

Dear Grantee

1
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Ourrecords indicate that we have not received a completed Performance Report from your
organisation for the following grant:

Activity ID: 4-EQZUEFC

Activity Title: Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project.

Completing the Report is a requirement as specified in the Project Schedule of your Head Agreement.

If you have recently submitted your completed Report to the Agency, or require more time to provide
it, please contact your NIAA Agreement Manager to clarify the situation.

A failure to complete this Report may lead to delays in the release of future grant payments to your
organisation.

Please do not reply to this email as it has been automatically generated.

Kind regards
NIAA IAS Performance Reports

Email: IASPerformanceReports@niaa.gov.au
Web: https://www.niaa.gov.au

2
FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 115 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 22

S22

From: William S47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>
Sent: Wednesday, 11 January 2023 3:51 PM

To: s22

Cc: s11C ; Secretary

Subject: Request for variation for expenses incurred for AGM
Attachments: Invoice INV-2035.pdf

Importance: High

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dears22

Over the end of last year, WWNAC did a lot of work with their lawyers to improve governance of the
Corporation. This included the review of the Corporation’s rules, which was part of the Capacity Building
Grant. This resulted in a number of proposed changes to the Rule Book which have been included in the AGM
this month. Inturn, this involved extensive costs in providing members with information on the changes.

Our IT provider was kind enough to attend to this without charge other than for the outlays, which as you will
see from the attached invoice are reasonably substantial.

Given this is to give effect to the objectives of the Capacity Building Grant, would you please be so kind as to
approve these outlays as an expense under the grant budget? We have more than enough to cover the cost in

unallocated funds.

By the way, in another advance for capacity within the Corporation, this year Elliot is going to chair the
meeting, and there is not going to be an external chair!

Many thanks,

Bill

1
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Invoice Date Venturer Technology Pty
TAX INVOICE 11 Jan 2023 L

Invoice Number PO Box 33
Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation INV-2035 Chormaids South 4032
Reference AUSTRALIA
AGM notice mailing
ABN

64 627 324 814

Description Quantity Unit Price GST Amount AUD

Printing black & white @ 15c per page: 350.00 0.17 10% 57.75
Appointment of Proxy forms - single sided 1 sheet

Printing - Colour @ 20c per page: 350.00 7.04 10% 2,464.00
AGM notice forms including appendices double sided 32
pages (16 sheets per document), includes staple left corner

envelopes & labels A4 for mailing 350.00 0.28 10% 96.25

preparation of mailing labels - mail merge 350 addresses 1.00 1,369.50 10% 1,369.506

as per 2 x Members lists provided, printing labels, stuffing L
—

envelopes, delivery to post office

(O]

o

Postage of documents via Australia Post 350.00 4.32 10% 1,511 .90%
>

INCLUDES GST 10% 499.958

[())

TOTAL AUD 5,499.40<

Due Date: 18 Jan 2023
Banking Details

s11C

View and pay online now

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians
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PAYMENT ADVICE

To:

Venturer Technology Pty Ltd
PO Box 33

Chermside South 4032
AUSTRALIA

FOI/2324/059

OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

Customer

Invoice Number

Amount Due
Due Date

Amount Enclosed

Document 22A

Woulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal
Corporation

INV-2035

5,499.40
18 Jan 2023

sed by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI

Enter the amount you are paying abov:
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From: s22

To: William

Cc: §11C @wwnac.org.au; s11C s22

Subject: RE: Request for variation WWNAC grant - re contract reviews [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 27 September 2023 1:02:00 PM

Good afternoon, Bill.
Firstly, thank you for the email below and the discussion yesterday afternoon.
A variation to the budget as requested below is approved.

Regards
S22

From: Williams4/7F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Sent: Tuesday, 26 September 2023 4:09 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:s11C @wwnac.org.au>;S11C @wwnac.org.au>
Subject: Request for variation WWNAC grant - re contract reviews

Dear Cathy,

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

B ER

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F
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From: s22

To: Secretary

Cc: william; s11C

Subject: RE: Request for Extension [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 20 June 2023 12:35:56 PM

Thanks Brian.

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 20 June 2023 12:19 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc: williamS47F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>; Elliot Anderson S11C @wwnac.org.au>;
christineroyans11C @bigpond.com>

Subject: Request for Extension

Hi S22

As per our discussion from todays meeting the Directors of WWNAC would like to apply for an
extension to current NIAA grant to 31 December 2023 due to competing demands of both the
Board of Directors and NIAA commitment to the VOICE and the project Manager Bill O'Chee
being overseas.

This has been endorsed by the BOD and Elders present at todays meeting of the 20 June 2023.
Regards

Brian Clancy

Secretary
WWNAC
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From: William

To: s22

Subject: Re: Request to approve funding for meeting [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 14 August 2023 3:43:20 PM

That has now been done and sent to you.

On 14 Aug 2023, at 2:43 pm, S22
S22 @official.niaa.gov.au> wrote:
Hi Bill

I am currently waiting on the Deed of variation to be signed by the board, they
happened to sign the cover letter not the variation.

Until this is signed, | am hesitant to send this request for approval.

Regards
S22

From: Williams4/7F  @himalayaconsulting.biz>

Sent: Monday, 14 August 2023 2:34 PM

To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc: Elliot Anderson <Elliot@wwnac.org.au>; Elizabeth Blucher
<elizabeth@wwnac.org.au>

Subject: Request to approve funding for meeting

Dears22

| have been asked by the WWNAC directors to seek approval from NIAA to use
Capacity Building grant funding to cover the costs of a Board of Directors meeting
(with Elder observers) to consider the Annual Review of the Strategic Plan, to be

held in Brisbane next week. This is an important governance meeting.

The meeting will also allows the Board to consider a number of draft policies
relating to employment, HR, and financial integrity.

If NIAA is willing to approve the use of the funds for this meeting, could you please
provide particulars of the costs which are acceptable?

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate to give me a telephone call.

Many thanks,

William O’Chee

BB BR
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

Subject: Re: Working with Vulnerable People and WHS [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Thursday, 23 February 2023 3:53:37 PM

Dear S22

This return has been prepared and is off with Brian and Elliot for consideration. | shall try
to get it to you as soon as possible.

Many thanks,

Bill

On 16 Feb 2023, at 12:43 pm, S22
S22 @official.niaa.gov.au> wrote:

Good afternoon, Bill

The performance report has been sent to your email address from Community
Hubs, please check your junk mail as it has a habit to go directly to this folder.

Attached to this email is the annual WWVP and WHS for WWNAC, please complete
and forward back to me.

Regards
S22

S22

Central Queensland & Wide Bay Area | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.s22 m.s22

Level 1/36 East Street, ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700| PO Box 550 ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700

w. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

<image001.jpg>

<image002.png> The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners
and custodians of country throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing
connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respects to the people, the
cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.
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

<SoC 2022 Report - Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC - ABN 66144335684.doc>

FOI1/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 124 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 27

From: William

To: Secretary

Cc: Elliot Anderson; s22 ;S22
Subject: Roles and functions you perform
Date: Tuesday, 4 June 2024 3:16:43 PM
Importance: High

Dear Elizabeth,

In order to be able to specify the terms and conditions of employment of the employment
contract. | am using standard awards set out by the Commonwealth Fair Work
Commission.

To ensure the maximum fairness to you, I think it would be best if you could kindly set out
in detail the roles and functions you perform, and for which you are seeking to be
remunerated. | have set out some examples below which might help you, and you might
say that one or other of them best describes what you do, or you might set out other roles
and functions that you think are more accurate.

Example 1

1. undertake a range of activities requiring the application of established work

procedures and may exercise limited initiative and/or judgment within clearly

established procedures and/or guidelines;

achieve outcomes which are clearly defined; respond to enquiries;

assist senior employees with special projects;

prepare cash payment summaries, banking reports and bank statements, post journals

to ledger etc. and apply purchasing and inventory control requirements;

5. perform elementary tasks within a community service program requiring knowledge
of established work practices and procedures relevant to the work area;

6. provide secretarial support requiring the exercise of sound judgment, initiative,
confidentiality and sensitivity in the performance of work;

7. perform tasks of a sensitive nature including the provision of more than routine
information, the receiving and accounting for moneys and assistance to clients;

8. assist in calculating and maintaining wage and salary records

pw™

Example 2

« undertake responsibility for various activities in a specialised area; exercise
responsibility for a function within the organisation;

« allow the scope for exercising initiative in the application of established work
procedures;

e assist in a range of functions and/or contribute to interpretation of matters for which
there are no clearly established practices and procedures although such activity
would not be the sole responsibility of such an employee within the workplace;

 provide secretarial and/or administrative support requiring a high degree of
judgment, initiative, confidentiality and sensitivity in the performance of work;

e assist with or provide a range of records management services, however the
responsibility for the records management service would not rest with the employee;

« proficient in the operation of the computer to enable modification and/or correction
of computer software systems or packages and/or identification problems. This level
could include systems administrators in small to medium sized organisations whose
responsibility includes the security/integrity of the system;
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apply computing programming knowledge and skills in systems development,
maintenance and implementation under direction of a senior employee;

supervise a limited number of lower classified employees or volunteers;

allow the scope for exercising initiative in the application of established work
procedures;

deliver single stream training programs; co-ordinate elementary service programs;
provide assistance to senior employees;

where prime responsibility lies in a specialised field, employees at this level would
undertake at least some of the following:

(i) undertake some minor phase of a broad or more complex assignment;

(if) perform duties of a specialised nature;

(iii) provide a range of information services;

(iv) plan and co-ordinate elementary community-based projects or programs;
perform moderately complex functions including social planning, demographic
analysis, survey design and analysis.

Example 3

preparing cash payment summaries, banking reports and bank statements;
calculating and maintaining wage and salary records; following credit referral
procedures; applying purchasing and inventory control requirements; and posting
journals to ledger;

providing specialised advice and information on the organisation’s products and
services;

responding to clients, the public or suppliers’ problems within own functional area
utilising a high degree of interpersonal skills;

arranging travel bookings and itineraries, making appointments, screening telephone
calls, responding to invitations, organising internal meetings, establishing and
maintaining reference lists or personal contact systems;

applying computer software in order to:

(i) create new files and records;
(if) maintain computer based records management systems;
identify and extract information from internal and external sources; or

(iv) use advanced word processing or keyboard functions;

Example 4

responding to enquiries, as appropriate, consistent with their knowledge of the
organisation’s operations and services or where presentation, or the use of
interpersonal skills, is a key aspect of the position;

operation of business equipment including computerised radio or telephone
equipment, computers, printing devices, dictaphone equipment and typewriters;
word processing, such as the use of a word processing software package to create,
format, edit, correct, print and save text documents such as standard correspondence
and business documents;

stenographer or person employed to take shorthand and to transcribe by means of
appropriate keyboard equipment;

copy typing and audio typing;

maintenance of records or journals (or both) including initial processing and
recording relating to the following:
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(i) reconciliation of accounts to balance; and
(ii) incoming or outgoing cheques; and

(iii) invoices; and

(iv) debit or credit items; and

(v) payroll data; and

(vi) petty cash imprest system; and

(vii) letters;

« computer applications, including using a software package which may include one
or more of the following functions:

(i) create new files and records;

(i) spreadsheet or worksheet;

(iii) graphics;

(iv) accounting or payroll file;

(v) following standard procedures and using existing models or fields of
information;

e arrange routine travel bookings and itineraries or make appointments;
« provide general advice and information on the organisation’s products and services
such as at the front counter or by telephone.

The sooner you can give me these advices the sooner | can complete the memor regarding
your appointment.
Many thanks,

Bill
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From: s22

To: s22 (Unclassified); S22 Unclassified)

Cc: s22 (Unclassified)

Subject: RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 19 January 2024 10:45:26 AM

Attachments: image004.png

170000309 NIAA.pdf
Outstanding Invoice SECOFFICIAL (337 KB).msg

OFFICIAL
Hi S22
The debt is for $844,492 including GST, invoice attached and is still outstanding. Attached is also
the email | sent on the 2/1/24 following up payment and have had no response.
| don’t seem to have a copy of the original letter that would have been sent with the debt notice,
I assume it’s a breach notice not an acquittal letter, but happy to see if | can find anything.

In relation to question 3, have those acquittals been done ? is there any further concerns with
the funding for those 2 years not being used or held in their own bank account? | assume the
answer to 3 could be potentially further debts could be raised once the acquittals have been
completed.

Do we know why ORIC have appointed an examiner? If that from our concerns?
Feel free to give me a call if you want to chat through anything.

Regards
S22

From:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 19 January 2024 8:51 AM

To:522 @niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Hi 22
Seeking advice on appropriate response to the below from BDO on the Wulli Wulli debt.

Happy to discuss further if required.

S22

Mbarbaram

Senior Officer

Brisbane Team | Grants Management Unit | Operations and Delivery Portfolio
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22

Level 19 215 Adelaide St Brisbane QLD 4001| GPO Box 9932 BRISBANE QLD 4000

W. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au
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The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of
country throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and
community. We pay our respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.

From: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 16 January 2024 2:08 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:S47F @bdo.com.au>; S22

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @niaa.gov.au>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22
s22 official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Re: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
Hi S22
Your email refers to $767,720 in FY21 as being unapproved expenditure and that that amount is

to be recovered by NIAA from the Corporation by debt invoice. The email says that the acquittal
outcome letter is attached but | couldn't identify which document that is.

1. Could you please resend the debt invoice and acquittal outcome letter to me relating to
FY21.

2. Is that debt of $767,720 still owing to NIAA?

3. Could the debt to be repaid back to NIAA by the Corporation be greater if the FY22 and
FY23 acquittals are submitted by the Corporation and NIAA identifies further unapproved
expenditure in those financial years?

Is it possible to get a response to the above by this Thursday?

Regards
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TODD KELLY

Partner

Advisory

Direct: S47F
Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au

BDO BDO

Level 1 15 Lake Street Level 1 51 Sturt Street
Cairns QLD 4870 Townsville QLD 4810
AUSTRALIA AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 7 4046 0000 Tel: +61 7 4729 8600
Fax:+61 7 4051 3484 Fax:+61 7 4051 3484

www.bdo.com.au

=5 Before you print think about the environment

BDO (NTH QLD) ABN 31 164 696 648 is a member of a national association of separate entities which are all members
of BDO (Australia) Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO (NTH QLD) and BDO
(Australia) Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and form part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO member firms.

The information in this email and any attachments is confidential. If you are not the named addressee you must not
read, print, copy, distribute, or use in any way this transmission or any information it contains. If you have received
this message in error, please notify the sender by return email, destroy all copies and delete it from your system.
Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender and not necessarily endorsed by BDO. You
may not rely on this message as advice unless subsequently confirmed by fax or letter signed by a Partner or Director
of BDO. It is your responsibility to scan this communication and any files attached for computer viruses and other
defects. BDO does not accept liability for any loss or damage however caused which may result from this
communication or any files attached. A full version of the BDO disclaimer, and our Privacy Statement, can be found

on the BDO website at www.bdo.com.au or by emailing administrator@bdo.com.au.

From:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 10:20:53 AM

To: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:s47F @bdo.com.au>; S22

s22 official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @niaa.gov.au>; S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of BDO in Australia. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning Todd,

Please see combined commentary as requested for Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC.

Attached to this email, you will find: Due to email size restrictions an additional email will be sent
with attachments highlighted yellow
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e  MOU between Wulli Wulli and Indigenous Work Stars (part of the John Pearson
Consulting Group)

e Himalayan Consulting Report

e WWNAC Risk Management & Performance Action Plan
e Signed executed NIAA Schedule

e Executed Head Agreement

e Sth Qld RM approval to extend project end date to 31/12/2023

1. A summary of any funding provided by the Department to the Corporation from 1 July
2020 to present;

e Received $1,174,800.00 NIAA funding to deliver Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project —
start date 12/06/2020 / end date 31/12/2023.

2. Asummary of future funding currently anticipated to be provided to the Corporation;

e To note - NIAA Program Compliance and Fraud Branch currently has concerns about
Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC. The PCF Branch request they be
contacted if there are any discussions relating to allocating new funding to this Provider.

e No future funding is planned for the Corporation and no discussion are currently being
undertaken by the CQ Regional Office.

3. Copies of the funding agreements relevant to point 1 and 2 above;

e Attached
4. The purpose of the funding;

e The project is to develop and strengthen capability and capacity of Corporation to enable
the governance, operations, skills and resources of the organisation to meet a growth in
demand. Increase capacity building with the engagement of ILUA Economic
Development Project Officer, Financial Operations Manager and Land and Culture
Manager (role to include coordination of cultural heritage works and establishment of
range of programs.

5. Funding agreement term/s;
As outlined in the attached Schedule and Head Agreement
6. Whether the Corporation has been compliant with the funding terms and conditions
(e.g. any financial and performance reports not submitted on time, concerns around
Acquittals);
Grants Management Unit:
Outstanding Milestones not received as at 22 December 2023:

e Audited Expenditure Report covering the period [01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022] due
30/09/2022
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e Performance Report covering the period [01 January 2023 to 30 June 2023] — due
15/07/2023

e Audited Expenditure Report covering the period [01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023] — due
30/09/2023

e  WWVP and WHS Statement of Compliance — due 30/10/2023
Acquittals
NIAA staff have provided advice, support and resources to assist Provider with submission of the
above Milestone reports.

e Non-audited Expenditure Report covering the period [01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021]
resulted in Debt invoice issued awaiting repayment/settlement.

Findings of this acquittal were - Of total 2020-21 funds of $904,996.00:
- $767,720 acquitted as unapproved expenditure, to be recovered via debt invoice
(issued with acquittal outcome letter - attached)
- $137,267 for admin costs acquitted as approved expenditure.
No other acquittal documentation has been submitted from Provider for 2021/22 & 2022/23
FY’s.
Performance Reports
Provider is required to submit 6 monthly PR. As at 07/12/2023, no formal PR documentation
(reporting period Jan-June 2023) has been received by NIAA.

CQ Regional Office, SQR:

e In April 2021, Mr Brian Clancy (Secretary), WWNAC contacted NIAA regarding the
Waulli Wulli Capacity Building Project wanting to hand back the funds due to several
issues with an agreement between the Corporation and Indigenous Workstars.

e As per the next dot point, the Corporation engaged Himalaya Consulting to undertake
an Independent Audit in relation to the issues.

e NIAA, the Corporation and Himalaya Consulting met over several months negotiated a
Risk Management Performance Action Plan.

e The Corporation agreed to the terms and conditions of a Risk Management
Performance Action Plan (RMPAP) between the Corporation and NIAA. A copy of Risk
Management Performance Action Plan is attached.

e There are some concerns with late reporting by the Corporation in relation to both
financial and performance reports. They currently have several reports outstanding,
as per the GMU response above.

7. The background to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting (e.g. Bill O’Chee), copies of
any agreements with the Corporation relating to the appointment of Himalaya
Consulting, and if any improvements in governance and financial management have
been reported; and

CQ Regional Office, SQR
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e On Friday, 11 June 2021 through the Corporation’s secretary Mr Brian Clancy informed
NIAA that the WWNAC Board recently engaged Himalaya Consulting to conduct an
Independent audit in regard to Compliance and Review of the Commonwealth
Capacity Building Grant through NIAA.

e A copy of the Himalaya Consulting Report is attached for reference.

e A copy of a Memorandum of Understanding between WWNAC and Indigenous
Workstars is referenced as part of the report from Himalaya Consulting.

¢ Improvements in governance and financial management improved through the
RMPAP.

e Over the past six months, with changes to the Board - engagement with the
Corporation has been limited.

8. Any concerns or other comments that you wish to advise us of in your dealings with the
Corporation (e.g. how NIAA grant funds may have been applied, concerns around
governance and financial management generally).

e Concerns regarding the MoU between the Corporation and IWS regarding the
payment of funds for delivery of services from the NIAA grant funds.

e The Corporation is undertaking a review of all payments made to various sub-
contractors in relation to services rendered through their Lawyers/Solicitors,
including IWS.

Please do not hesitate to contact Cathy Irwin or me if additional information or clarification
required.

Regards,

S22 | Senior Agreement Manager

Brisbane Team | Grants Management Unit | Operations and Delivery Portfolio
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22

Level 19 215 Adelaide St Brisbane QLD 4001| GPO Box 9932 BRISBANE QLD 4000

Ww. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

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
Sent: Tuesday, 19 December 2023 10:03 AM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S47F r
s47F @bdo.com.au>

Subject: Re: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
Hi S22
Your extension request to this Friday will be fine.

Regards

TODD KELLY

Partner

Advisory

Direct: S47F
Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au

BDO

Level 1 15 Lake Street
Cairns QLD 4870
AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 7 4046 0000
Fax:+61 7 4051 3484

BDO

Level 1 51 Sturt Street
Townsville QLD 4810
AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 7 4729 8600
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 9:16 am

To: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>

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

Good morning, Todd.
| am currently working in the Toowoomba Office as the A/Engagement Director, due to the
current workload | have been unable to retrieve all the requested documentation listed within

the attached document.

Could | please request an extension until Friday of this week, as | am travelling to Bundaberg this
afternoon for the next two days.

| do apologise for the delay.

I look forward to your response.

Regards

S22

From:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 19 December 2023 9:01 AM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

HiS22

As the below email outlines, Todd Kelly from BDO is seeking an update for submitting the
Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC.

Can you let me know how you’re travelling with input.

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
Sent: Monday, 18 December 2023 3:58 PM

@official.niaa.gov.au>

To:522
Cc:S47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F
s47F @bdo.com.au>

Subject: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

His22,

@oric.gov.au>; S47F |

Further to our telephone conversation on 27 November 2023 (following my earlier email that
day), | was wondering how you were going gathering the requested information for the

Examination?

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
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 10:11 am

To:s22 @official.niaa.gov.au S22 official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:S47F @oric.gov.au>; Campbell, Scott $22 @oric.gov.au>; S47F
s47F @bdo.com.au>

Subject: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Dear S22

ORIC have appointed us (refer attached) as Examiners of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC (“the Corporation”).

ORIC have provided your name as the contact persons for various different funding arrangements
between NIAA and the Corporation.

We have to report to the ORIC on this file within short time frames. Accordingly, it would be
appreciated if you could please provide to us by close of business on Monday, 18 December 2023
the following to assist us in completing our work as Examiners:

1. A summary of any funding provided by the Department to the Corporation from 1 July 2020
to present;

2. A summary of future funding currently anticipated to be provided to the Corporation;

3. Copies of the funding agreements relevant to point 1 and 2 above;

4. The purpose of the funding;

5.  Funding agreement term/s;

6. Whether the Corporation has been compliant with the funding terms and conditions (e.g.
any financial and performance reports not submitted on time, concerns around Acquittals);

7. The background to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting (e.g. Bill O’Chee), copies of

any agreements with the Corporation relating to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting,
and if any improvements in governance and financial management have been reported; and

8. Any concerns or other comments that you wish to advise us of in your dealings with the

Corporation (e.g. how NIAA grant funds may have been applied, concerns around
governance and financial management generally).
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Document 28

ORIC require your responses to the above to be in writing for its records, particularly around any

concerns or other comments that you may have.

Please contact me if you have any queries regarding the above.

Regards

TODD KELLY

Partner

Advisory

Direct: s47F
Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au

BDO BDO

Level 1 15 Lake Street Level 1 25 Sturt Street
Cairns QLD 4870 Townsville QLD 4810
AUSTRALIA AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 7 4046 0000 Tel: +61 7 4729 8600
Fax: +61 7 4051 3484 Fax: +61 7 4051 3484

www.bdo.com.au

Before you print think about the environment

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
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From: DebtRecoveryNIAA
To: secretary@wwnac.org.au
Cc: DebtRecoveryNIAA
Subject: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 2 January 2024 11:40:02 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

image005.png

170000309 NIAA.pdf

OFFICIAL
Good Morning
| am following up on the attached outstanding invoice.
Your prompt payment would be greatly appreciated.
Regards
S22
S22

Director, Financial Statements and Special Accounts
Finance Branch | Grants and Finance Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

pS22 | m.s22
Charles Perkins House, 16 Bowes Place Phillip ACT 2606| PO Box 2191 CANBERRA ACT 2600

The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of
) country throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and
community. We pay our respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.
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From: William

To: S22 ;822

Subject: Some good news for a change - we are making progress!
Date: Wednesday, 8 March 2023 2:34:40 PM

DearS22 &S22

Amidst the turmoil some people want to create, | can report some good news from this
week.

I was contacted by, and have met, a Wulli Wulli man who is interested in going onto the
board of the investment company. He is double tertiary qualified, has worked with a major
not-for-profit, and is the indigenous engagement manager for a national property
development company. He was encouraged by one of the elders to come forward to
contribute his time and energy to what we are doing.

I was very impressed with him in the hour long meeting we had this morning. He fully
understands the endowment fund strategy from his previous work on the NFP.

Obviously, it is up to the elders who is appointed, but the fact he was directed to me
suggests they have already discussed the matter, if I know them as | believe I do.

The elders will probably vote on his appointment at the meeting before the AGM, or prior
to the first board meeting after.

I shan’t reveal his name until things are agreed, but this is a sign of change. Previously,
talented people gave WWNAC a wide berth, but now we are encouraging them to become
involved, and this is a major achievement in capacity building.

So, if we keep persevering, good things do happen. We just need to keep on keeping on.

More to follow in due course.

Yours,

William O’Chee

B BR

Partner

Himalaya Consulting
Mob: s47F
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From: s22
To: Secretary
Cc: §11C @wwnac.org.au; s11C @bigpond.com; S22 s47F @himalayaconsulting.biz
Subject: TEAMS Meeting [SEC=0FFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 11 July 2023 3:20:31 PM
Attachments: image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png

Good afternoon, All

The reason for my email is to arrange a time to meet this week to discuss the amendments to the
Risk Management Performance Action Plan.

Can you please advise what times and days that you may be available to meet?

| look forward to your response.

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

0 @@ 0¢9
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From: s22
To: S47F @himalayaconsulting.biz
Cc: S22 ; "Elizabeth Blucher"; $11€ @wwnac.org.au; S22
Subject: Wulli Wulli Native Title Aboriginal Corporation [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 15 May 2024 10:06:41 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

image005.png

image006.png

Good morning, Bill.

As mentioned in my text this morning, | have been given permission to contact you regarding
WWNAC’s reporting and other issues relating to the NIAA funding.

Could we please arrange a time to meet via TEAMs to discuss this further.
| look forward to your response.

Regards
s22

s22

Central Queensland Engagement | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22 m.S22

Level 1/36 East Street Rockhampton QLD 4700|PO Box 550 Rockhampton QLD 4700

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

0 ©@0°9°
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From: Elliot Anderson

To: s22 s22 william
Subject: WWNAC Update Re; Secretary

Date: Saturday, 29 June 2024 2:29:33 PM

G'day all, as you are all aware now from yesterday's contact from me that WWNAC's
Secretary has resigned. Business must go on and more-so at this critical time of the ORIC
Compliance expectation, the NIAA Grant & the internal structure for WWNAC, it's
processes & governance.
Bill it was requested to get you back for the purpose’s of the financial policy as well as to
best move forward with WWNAC's structure.
This isn't a decision of me an tve Chair but need's to be a decision from the Board as a
whole because | am the only remaining executor. at present? However | would be
requesting that once the outstanding NIAA request's for signing off on that NIAA
requested documents would be kind enough to approve a further extension to as 1) pay
your invoice to get the WWNAC on track in the interim?

2)fund this next important special BoD's meeting for
this Board to make vital and important decisions to getting things right and back on track
regarding WWNAC's financial policies and internal financial bearers.

3)There is this underlying issue that is part of the
reasoning of our Secretary's resignation and that is the remuneration of the WWNAC
Director's and what need's to be clearly articulated is if both Robyn & Travern accept role's
as an interim to get us to the AGM with how they'll be remunerated to including the
Board?

WWNAC needs a clear direction as to what Bill's role will be here as one would think it
will be a short role but important enough to get thing's moving quite rapidly? We're at a
loss at the moment as we need minute's & resolution/s to bring on other's within the
signatories role and responsibilities to then go to the Bank to go through the Bank's
processing? This will then allow WWNAC to then function in accordance to It’s
governance and financial obligations into paying invoice's.

At this present time meeting to be sent to the WWNAC BoD's is to include the;
BoD's in person,
Minute Taker,
Corporate Lawyer - Daniel Paratore,
William O'Chee - Consultant. Both via Team's which Cultural Pathways is our Sevice
Provided to handle the logistics regarding this urgent matter.
In closing something we spoke about yesterday S22 with the administration support as
I haven't seen it as of yet and have tried to find it to no avail. Could you please send me the
name and link please asap?
Kind regards....Elliot Anderson
WWNAC Chairperson 0408884902

Get Outlook for i0OS

FOI1/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 144 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 33

From: GMU Brisbane

To: secretary@wwnac.org.au

Cc: S22

Subject: 2020-21 NIAA 1AS acquittal outcome letter 4-E9ZUEFC
Date: Tuesday, 13 September 2022 12:20:53 PM

Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
20-21 Grant Acquittal Outcome Letter - Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC.pdf
170000309 NIAA tax invoice.pdf

Good afternoon Brian,

Please find attached the NIAA IAS 2020-21 acquittal outcome letter for activity 4-EQZUEFC - Wulli
Wulli Capacity Building Project. Also attached is the NIAA tax invoice for $767,720.00 (GST excl).

Please feel free to contact me if you have any queries.

Regards,

S22 | Senior Agreement Manager
Brisbane Team | Grants Management Unit
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22
* Please note | work part-time and am off every 2nd Thursday

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

Dear Mr Clancy

ACQUITTAL ADVICE

| am writing to advise you of the acquittal outcome outlined in the table below.

Document 33A

An analysis of the financial acquittal documentation has been carried out to determine if the funding objectives
have been achieved and that all funds have been accounted for in accordance with your Grant Agreement.

Activity ID 4-E9ZUEFC

Project Title Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project

Programme 1.1 - Jobs, Land and the Economy — Capacity Building
Acquittal Period 1/07/2020 to 30/06/2021

Financial Acquittal Details

Amount

(Positive Value if Underspend, Negative Value if Overspend)

Funding released for year $406,600.00
SACS Supplementation released for year $0.00
Prior year funds carried over $496,600.00
Prior year funds with offset carried over $0.00
Prior year overspend carried over $0.00
Activity generated income - interest $1,796.00
Activity generated income - other than interest $0.00
Total Value of Funds Acquitted for period ending 30/06/2021 $904,996.00
Actual Approved Expenditure $137,276.00
Acquittal Balance $767,720.00

Outcome Comments (if applicable) Approved Amount (ex GST)
Underspend - to be recovered by Debt Invoice Number: $767,720.00
Debt invoice 170000309

In addition to the amount shown above you will need to repay the GST component. Therefore the full amount of
the unexpended funds for this Activity ID to be repaid is $844,492.00 as per the attached tax invoice.

Although we have acquitted funds we may still seek return of those funds or pursue other remedies if it is later
discovered that the funds were not used in accordance with your Grant Agreement.

OFFICIAL

NIAA | | Grant Acquittal - Outcome OFFICIAL
FOI1/2324/059
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Should you have any queries in regard to the above please do not hesitate to contact 5§22
07 3837 3466 or GMUBrisbane@official.niaa.gov.au

Yours sincerely

S

s22 , Director
Grants Management Unit Queensland | Program Performance Delivery
National Indigenous Australians Agency

29/08/2022

OFFICIAL

NIAA | | Grant Acquittal = Outcome OFFICIAL
FOI1/2324/059
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From: 522
To: Secretary
Cc: Lynette Dippel; 511C  @bigpond.com; §22
Subject: RE: NIAA Grant Expenses [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 6 August 2024 9:45:22 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png.

image004.png.

image005.png

image006.png

image007.png

image008.png

image009.png

Document 34

Good morning, Lynette.

| acknowledge the communication regarding the charges to Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation Board of Directors. All communications regarding

WWNAC will be directed to the secretary@wwnac.orga.au.

Can | please request all future correspondence to the Agency includes our Engagement Director, 522

and | have cc her into this email.

The current activity end date was the 31 December 2023, no extension has been granted on the NIAA funding due to outstanding performance and

financial reporting milestones.

Please let me know if you need any further information and only to happy to have a conversation.

Regards
S22

s22

Central Queensland Engagement | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.522 m.§22

Level 1/36 East Street Rockhampton QLD 4700 PO Box 550 Rockhampton QLD 4700
w. Niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au

The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of country

throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay our

respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging

0e©0¢

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Monday, August 5, 2024 4:50 PM

To:522 win@official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc: Lynette Dippel <Lynette@wwnac.org.au>; lesleybfbc@bigpond.com
Subject: NIAA Grant Expenses

AfternoonS22

Just an update Elizabeth Blucher and David Blucher have resigned.
Current Directors

Elliot Anderson(Chairman)

Desmond Dodd

Lynette Dippel ( Contact Person)

Erica Landers

Sharon McQueen

AU Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporations correspondence is to go to the secretary@wwnac.org.au

Can you please clarify if WWNAC has an extension on NIAA funding.

Kind Regards
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WWNAC Directors
Waulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

PO Box 13
MOURA,QLD,4718

retary@wwnac.org.

s1iC

OFFICIAL
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Document 35

From: s22
To: Todd Kelly; s22
Cc: S47F s22
Subject: Additional attachments. RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
Date: Friday, 22 December 2023 11:22:59 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png

Himalaya Consulting Report for WWNAC.pdf
Risk Management and Performance Action Plan WWNAC.pdf

Additional attachments.

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

From:S27
Sent: Friday, 22 December 2023 10:21 AM
To: 'Todd Kelly' <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>; S22

Cc:S47F @bdo.com.au>; S22
S22 s22

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Good morning Todd,

@niaa.gov.au>;

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

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL
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e MOU between Wulli Wulli and Indigenous Work Stars (part of the John Pearson Consulting
Group)

e Himalayan Consulting Report

o WWNAC Risk Management & Performance Action Plan

o Signed executed NIAA Schedule

e Executed Head Agreement

e Sth Qld RM approval to extend project end date to 31/12/2023

1. A summary of any funding provided by the Department to the Corporation from 1 July 2020 to
present;
e Received $1,174,800.00 NIAA funding to deliver Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project —
start date 12/06/2020 / end date 31/12/2023.

2. A summary of future funding currently anticipated to be provided to the Corporation;

e To note - NIAA Program Compliance and Fraud Branch currently has concerns about Wulli
Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC. The PCF Branch request they be contacted if
there are any discussions relating to allocating new funding to this Provider.

¢ No future funding is planned for the Corporation and no discussion are currently being
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
demand. Increase capacity building with the engagement of ILUA Economic Development
Project Officer, Financial Operations Manager and Land and Culture Manager (role to
include coordination of cultural heritage works and establishment of range of programs.

5. Funding agreement term/s;
As outlined in the attached Schedule and Head Agreement
6. Whether the Corporation has been compliant with the funding terms and conditions (e.g. any
financial and performance reports not submitted on time, concerns around Acquittals);
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
e WWVP and WHS Statement of Compliance — due 30/10/2023
Acquittals
NIAA staff have provided advice, support and resources to assist Provider with submission of the
above Milestone reports.
¢ Non-audited Expenditure Report covering the period [01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021]
resulted in Debt invoice issued awaiting repayment/settlement.
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Findings of this acquittal were - Of total 2020-21 funds of $904,996.00:

- $767, 720 acquitted as unapproved expenditure, to be recovered via debt invoice
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
¢ In April 2021, Mr Brian Clancy (Secretary), WWNAC contacted NIAA regarding the Wulli

Waulli Capacity Building Project wanting to hand back the funds due to several issues
with an agreement between the Corporation and Indigenous Workstars.

e As per the next dot point, the Corporation engaged Himalaya Consulting to undertake
an Independent Audit in relation to the issues.

¢ NIAA, the Corporation and Himalaya Consulting met over several months negotiated a
Risk Management Performance Action Plan.

¢ The Corporation agreed to the terms and conditions of a Risk Management
Performance Action Plan (RMPAP) between the Corporation and NIAA. A copy of Risk
Management Performance Action Plan is attached.

e There are some concerns with late reporting by the Corporation in relation to both
financial and performance reports. They currently have several reports outstanding, as
per the GMU response above.

7. The background to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting (e.g. Bill O’Chee), copies of any
agreements with the Corporation relating to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting, and if
any improvements in governance and financial management have been reported; and

CQ Regional Office, SQR
e On Friday, 11 June 2021 through the Corporation’s secretary Mr Brian Clancy informed

NIAA that the WWNAC Board recently engaged Himalaya Consulting to conduct an
Independent audit in regard to Compliance and Review of the Commonwealth Capacity
Building Grant through NIAA.

¢ A copy of the Himalaya Consulting Report is attached for reference.

¢ A copy of a Memorandum of Understanding between WWNAC and Indigenous
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
Corporation (e.g. how NIAA grant funds may have been applied, concerns around governance
and financial management generally).

e Concerns regarding the MoU between the Corporation and IWS regarding the payment
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of funds for delivery of services from the NIAA grant funds.
e The Corporation is undertaking a review of all payments made to various sub-
contractors in relation to services rendered through their Lawyers/Solicitors, including

IWS.
Please do not hesitate to contact S22 or me if additional information or clarification
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
Cc:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S47F
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
Direct: +s47F
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

FOI/2324/059 OFFICIAL Page 155 of 258

Released by the National Indigenous Autralians Agency under FOI



OFFICIAL Document 35

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
Cc:S47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F
@bdo.com.au>

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

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc: @oric.gov.au>; S47F |@oric.gov.au>; 522 S47F
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

. A summary of future funding currently anticipated to be provided to the Corporation;

. Copies of the funding agreements relevant to point 1 and 2 above;

. The purpose of the funding;

. Funding agreement term/s;

. Whether the Corporation has been compliant with the funding terms and conditions (e.g.
any financial and performance reports not submitted on time, concerns around Acquittals);

. The background to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting (e.g. Bill O’Chee), copies of any
agreements with the Corporation relating to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting, and if
any improvements in governance and financial management have been reported; and

. Any concerns or other comments that you wish to advise us of in your dealings with the
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
Fax: +61 7 4051 3484

www.bdo.com.au

BDO

Level 1 25 Sturt Street
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
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] determine what financial reports are required to be tabled at each directors’ meeting,
including the format and language of any reports from senior management and/or the
corporation’s external accountant (if the corporation has one). The review must consider
whether the directors must receive these financial reports (and other board papers) before
each directors’ meeting (e.g. a week before each meeting)

. identify who will be responsible for preparing and presenting these reports to the directors

o whether the corporation uses a consistent agenda for each directors’ meeting which
includes the tabling and presentation of financial reports.

By the close of business on Friday, 16 August 2024: Send a written report with any relevant
supporting documents to the Registrar’s delegate on the findings of the review and the action
taken by the directors to ensure they are meeting their duties and obligations with respect to the
monitoring of the corporation’s financial position, financial performance and financial affairs.

C5. Register of former members

Matter(s)
The examination identified the corporation does not maintain a register of former members.

The corporation asserts it has begun updating its membership records to include former
members and the required information for former members.

Action required

By the close of business on Friday, 16 August 2024: The directors of the corporation must
send to the Registrar’s delegate a copy of the register of former members.

Dated this 9™ day of July 2024
QZV‘J &

Kevin Vu

Delegate of the Registrar of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Corporations

Note: The decision to issue this notice is a reviewable decision under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander) Act 2006 (Cth) and you have the right to have the decision reviewed under Part 15-4 of that
legislation. Should you wish to avail yourself of that right, you will need to comply with the requirements of
section 620-5 of that legislation.

7 of7
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From: s22
To: s22
Subject: Draft Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC ORP for consideration
Date: Wednesday, 5 April 2023 9:02:02 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
Waulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC ORP.pdf

Hi S22
Thanks again for your input into the ORP.
| have updated as required and the current rating has dropped from Extreme to Medium.

The reason for this decrease is Compliance Branch input, yours, and sufficient strategies
embedded between GMU and REO to support Provider in service delivery, finance management
and service delivery.

Happy to discuss further.
Regards,

s22 | Agreement Manager
Brisbane Team | Grants Management Unit | Program Performance Delivery Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.S22
Level 19 215 Adelaide St Brisbane QLD 4001| GPO Box 9932 BRISBANE QLD 4000

Ww. niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au
Following the introduction of the PPDG Front Door in September, queries should be directed to

the PPDG Front Door rather than to PPDG group mailboxes or individuals.

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

O ®@ o ©
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RISK PROFILE - WULLI WULLI NATION ABORIGINAL CORPORATION RNTBC DUE 5/04/2023

SUMMARY

GOVERNANCE

Complete: No Risk Rating: Low

Risks and Issues:

No Governance risks or issues identified. Compliance Branch had raised concerns about
governance and subcontracting arrangements, now resolved.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Complete: No Risk Rating:

Risks and Issues:

Provider has not returned via debt invoice of $767, 720.00 raised from the 2020/21 FY acquittal
outcome.

Compliance Branch has indicated they have concerns with the organisation. Please refer to
previous question.

SERVICE DELIVERY

Complete: No Risk Rating: Medium

Risks and Issues:
Review of GPS records consecutive PRA ratings of Needs to Improve.
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DETAILS

GOVERNANCE

Completed By: Completed On: Governance Risk Rating: Low

1. Is the organisation a legal entity?

Response
Yes

Evidence Sighted / Comments

Organisation not registered with ASIC. Registered with ORIC (ICN 8263) since July 2015 as a
medium organisation. Registered with ACNC since July 2015. ABN Lookup records ABN
(66144335684) linked to this organisation as an Other Incorporated Entity, active since August
2015, registered for GST at the same time. No other trading name or entity type recorded or
linked to the ABN after standard Google search of publicly available information.

Risk Level
Low

2. Does the organisation have a complex organisational structure?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments
No other trading name or entity type recorded from a standard Google search.

Risk Level
Low

3. Does the organisation have any known issues with its governance arrangements?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments

Unclear what governance arrangements in place after reviewing organisations website, no
information recorded. ACNC records 7 Directors (Brian Clancy, Desmond Dodd, Elizabeth
Blucher, Elliot Anderson, Erica Landers, Sharon McQueen and Wayne Saltner). Unclear from
Google search what qualifications and relevant experience Directors possess. No known
conflicts of interest identified.

REO confirmed: At the recent AGM all directors except for Desmond Dodd were re-elected and
one new director coming on board. All remaining directors have relevant experience and
undertaken governance training. All Directors required to have police check when elected, all
remaining directors have been completed. All Board Members to undertake risk management

and Iﬁig@}g@d&ovemame training over thedﬁ)_g}éﬁﬂ_ple of months. Page 172 of 258
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Compliance Branch confirms: Concerns regarding governance and subcontracting
arrangements which had placed Wulli Wulli in breach of IAS funding agreement, now resolved.

Risk Level
Low

4. Does the organisation have the appropriate internal supports to allow it to function at its
most efficient? (eg Financial, HR, Governance, Technical)

Response

Yes

Evidence Sighted / Comments

A standard Google search undertaken by assessor did not identify what internal supports are
available to the organisation, allowing for efficient functionality. REO confirms: As part of the
RMPAP, a consultant has been engaged to develop the internal supports of HR, Technical,
Financial and Governance. These will be completed prior to the 30 June 2023.

Risk Level
Low

RISKS & MITIGATIONS

Risks and Issues:

No Governance risks or issues identified. Compliance Branch had raised concerns about
governance and subcontracting arrangements, now resolved.

Recommended Mitigations:
Apply standard controls framework. Seek relevant advice from Compliance Branch if required.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Completed By: Completed On: Financial Management Risk Rating:

1. Do the organisation's financial statements indicate any significant issues?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments

Financial statements (to 30/06/2022) reviewed on ORIC website. Auditors’ opinion records no
issues, signed off 28/02/2023. REO confirms: Part of the RMPAP was to form an internal
Investment Committee with two members elected by the Elders and three members were
external of the PBC with qualifications in Accounting, Lawyer and Auditing-these positions have
been filled.

Risk Level
Low

2. Is the asset-to-liability ratio below 1.0?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments
Financial report (ending June 2022) for organisation was reviewed from ORIC.

Current Assets/Liabilities 2021
Assets $986,355

Liabilities $430,303

Ratio 2.29

Current Assets/Liabilities 2022
Assets $1,374,817

Liabilities $10,279

Ratio 133.75

Risk Level
3. If the answer to Question 2 is YES, does the organisation receive grant funding of
$500,000 (GST exclusive) or more in a single financial year from funding administered by

the NIAA?

Response
Not Applicable

Evidence Sighted / Comments
N/A
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4. Are there any concerns regarding fraud, serious non-compliance, or unpaid Government
debts?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments

Review of GPS records the below for 2020/21 FY acquittal outcome:

Of total 2020-21 funds of $904,996.00: $767, 720 acquitted as unapproved expenditure, to be
recovered via debt invoice (issued with acquittal outcome letter)

$137,267 for admin costs acquitted as approved expenditure

Approved by NIAA delegate 23/08/2022

2021/22 FY acquittal documentation has not been submitted by organisation to date
(04/05/2023).

REO confirms: Compliance and Fraud Branch are responding to letter from WWNAC's lawyers
regarding the debt listed above.

Risk Level
Medium

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

Confirm with NIAA Compliance team, REO and GMU AM if financial issues are completed or in
negotiation for completion. Apply standard controls.
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SERVICE DELIVERY

Completed By: Completed On: Service Delivery Risk Rating: Medium

1. Does the organisation have a strong record of delivering services to Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people?

Response
Yes

Evidence Sighted /Comments

Organisation website records the Corporation was established (24/07/2015) in response to
Native Title determination where traditional owners are required to hold the Native Title in Trust.
Same source records organisations core business is to look after the right & interests of all Wulli
Waulli people, including to protect, promote, manage Native Title rights and to relieve the
disadvantage of the Wulli Wulli people through the advancement of education, health, social
welfare and culture. Organisation funded with IAS since June 2020 through a Capacity Building
project. REO confirms: Currently a Risk Management Performance Action Plan in place
between NIAA and the PBC to ensure the key deliverable of the plan are met. A new RMPAP
will be signed off by the new Board at the next monthly meeting.

Risk Level
Low

2. If the organisation has been funded previously, have service delivery requirements been
met?

Response
Yes

Evidence Sighted / Comments

Review of GPS identifies:

PRA - 4-E9ZUEFC - 4-H8R2CI1 —(Jan-Jun 2022) Report received as a Pass with a rating of
Needs to Improve.

PRA - 4-E9ZUEFC - 4-IC6W1BN — (Jul-Dec 2022) Report submitted rated as a Pass with a
rating of Needs to Improve.

REO confirms: Currently a Risk Management Performance Action Plan in place between NIAA
and the PBC to ensure the key deliverable of the plan are met. A new RMPAP will be signed off
by the new Board at the next monthly meeting.

Risk Level
Medium
3. Can you identify any other service delivery risks associated with this organisation?

Response
No

Evidence Sighted / Comments
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REO confirms strategies are in place to support organisation to deliver and record service
delivery outcomes for the NIAA funded project.

Risk Level
Medium

RISKS & MITIGATIONS

Risks and Issues:
Review of GPS records consecutive PRA ratings of Needs to Improve.

Recommended Mitigations:

REO & GMU AM to support organisation to ensure satisfactory outcomes are achieved for
service delivery as required in the funded IAS project. Currently a Risk Management
Performance Action Plan in place between NIAA and the PBC to ensure the key deliverable of
the plan are met. A new RMPAP will be signed off by the new Board at the next monthly
meeting.

Apply standard controls.
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From: s22
To: s22
Cc: S22 ); 822
Subject: FW: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 19 January 2024 4:58:42 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

170000309 NIAA.pdf
2020-21 NIAA 1AS acquittal outcome letter 4-E9ZUEFC (467 KB).msqg

S22 a this is the ORIC independent investigation of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
(WWNAC) | mentioned in my text to you on Wednesday. S22 and | had a conversation with two
Board Members from WWNAC late Tuesday afternoon who have concerns about not having
access to information and not getting the advice they need from Bill O’Chee, their consultant from
Himalaya Consulting.

We suggested that they raise their concerns with the independent investigator and that we would
follow up on their request to extend their agreement due to their being unexpended funds
outside of the debt mentioned in this email trail. WWNAC’s agreement wasn’t picked up with D23.
Cathy advised that we should await legal advice on how to deal with this. We will be following up
to see what support they need with their governance issues.

Regards.

S22

S22

Engagement Director

Central Queensland & Wide Bay Area | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p. (822 m.S22

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

From: @official.niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 19 January 2024 1:45 PM
To: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>
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Cc:S47F r@bdo.com.au>; S22
@official.niaa.gov.au>; S22
@official.niaa.gov.au>; S22 @niaa.gov.au>;
S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>;522 thy
s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
Hi Todd,

Please see below responses.
Hoping this answers your questions.

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
throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay
our respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.

From: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>
Sent: Friday, 19 January 2024 8:53 AM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:S47F @bdo.com.au>; 522

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22 @niaa.gov.au>;
s22 official.niaa.gov.au>; 22

S22 official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Hi s22
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I am just checking that you got the email below regarding Examination matters and what was the
likely timeframe in obtaining a response?

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

BDO (NTH QLD) ABN 31 164 696 648 is a member of a national association of separate entities which are all members of
BDO (Australia) Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO (NTH QLD) and BDO
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
this message in error, please notify the sender by return email, destroy all copies and delete it from your system. Any
views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender and not necessarily endorsed by BDO. You may not
rely on this message as advice unless subsequently confirmed by fax or letter signed by a Partner or Director of BDO. It
is your responsibility to scan this communication and any files attached for computer viruses and other defects. BDO
does not accept liability for any loss or damage however caused which may result from this communication or any files
attached. A full version of the BDO disclaimer, and our Privacy Statement, can be found on the BDO website at

www.bdo.com.au or by emailing administrator@bdo.com.au.

From: Todd Kelly <Todd.Kelly@bdo.com.au>
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2024 2:08 PM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Cc:S47F @bdo.com.au>; S22

s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22 @niaa.gov.au>;
s22 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22

@official.niaa.gov.au>
Subject: Re: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

HS22

Your email refers to $767,720 in FY21 as being unapproved expenditure and that that amount is to
be recovered by NIAA from the Corporation by debt invoice. The email says that the acquittal
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

Document 38

The debt is for $844,492 including GST, invoice attached and is still outstanding. 2021 FY outcome

comms attached.

3. Could the debt to be repaid back to NIAA by the Corporation be greater if the FY22 and
FY23 acquittals are submitted by the Corporation and NIAA identifies further unapproved
expenditure in those financial years?

Potentially further debts could be raised once the acquittals have been submitted, reviewed and

completed, yet to be determined as none submitted.
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

To:522 @bdo.com.au>; S22

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

¢ Signed executed NIAA Schedule

e Executed Head Agreement

e Sth Qld RM approval to extend project end date to 31/12/2023

1. Asummary of any funding provided by the Department to the Corporation from 1 July 2020
to present;

e Received $1,174,800.00 NIAA funding to deliver Wulli Wulli Capacity Building Project — start
date 12/06/2020 / end date 31/12/2023.

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
e Performance Report covering the period [01 January 2023 to 30 June 2023] —due
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
- $767, 720 acquitted as unapproved expenditure, to be recovered via debt invoice (issued
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with acquittal outcome letter - attached)

- $137,267 for admin costs acquitted as approved expenditure.

No other acquittal documentation has been submitted from Provider for 2021/22 & 2022/23 FY’s.
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
Woulli Capacity Building Project wanting to hand back the funds due to several issues
with an agreement between the Corporation and Indigenous Workstars.

¢ As per the next dot point, the Corporation engaged Himalaya Consulting to undertake an
Independent Audit in relation to the issues.

e NIAA, the Corporation and Himalaya Consulting met over several months negotiated a
Risk Management Performance Action Plan.

e The Corporation agreed to the terms and conditions of a Risk Management Performance
Action Plan (RMPAP) between the Corporation and NIAA. A copy of Risk Management
Performance Action Plan is attached.

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
agreements with the Corporation relating to the appointment of Himalaya Consulting, and
if any improvements in governance and financial management have been reported; and

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

¢ Improvements in governance and financial management improved through the RMPAP.

e Over the past six months, with changes to the Board - engagement with the Corporation
has been limited.

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
current workload | have been unable to retrieve all the requested documentation listed within the
attached document.

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
Ce:s47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F
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
Sent: Monday, November 27,2023 10:11 am

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:S47F @oric.gov.au>; S47F @oric.gov.au>S47F
@bdo.com.au>

Subject: Examination of Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Dear s22 ,

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
appreciated if you could please provide to us by close of business on Monday, 18 December 2023 the
following to assist us in completing our work as Examiners:

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

. Whether the Corporation has been compliant with the funding terms and conditions (e.g. any
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

Cc: S22 S22 ; William

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

Please find attached the NIAA IAS 2020-21 acquittal outcome letter for activity 4-E9ZUEFC - Wulli
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
* s22
The National Indigenous Australians Agency acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of
country throughout Australia and acknowledges their continuing connection to land, waters and
community. We pay our respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging.

[-]
[<]
®
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From: s22
To: s22
Subject: FW: NEW CORRESPONDENCE: FURTHER ADVICE: Wulli Wulli challenging 2021-22 debt amount
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
Date: Tuesday, 4 April 2023 8:38:47 AM
Attachments: image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

image006.png
NEW CORRESPONDENCE FURTHER ADVICE Wulli Wulli challenging 2021-22 debt ... (301 KB).ms

His22

WWNAC have sent further correspondence to the Compliance team regarding the outstanding
acquittal, | have attached all necessary attachments to this email.

Regards
s22

From: Compliance (Protected) <compliance@niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 30 March 2023 8:32 AM

To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; Compliance (Protected)
<compliance@niaa.gov.au>

Cc:522 ) S22 @niaa.gov.au>; Commercial Law (Protected)
<commerciallaw@niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @niaa.gov.au>; S22

S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: RE: NEW CORRESPONDENCE: FURTHER ADVICE: Wulli Wulli challenging 2021-22 debt
amount [SEC=0OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Legal privilege
Hi S22

| can confirm that we have received the letter and are in the process of writing a response.

Regards
S22
From:S22 @official.niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 24 March 2023 2:36 PM
To: Compliance <Compliance@niaa.gov.au>

s22 . .
Cc: @niaa.gov.au>; Commercial Law

<Commerciallaw@niaa.gov.au>; S22 @niaa.gov.au>; S22
@official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: NEW CORRESPONDENCE: FURTHER ADVICE: Wulli Wulli challenging 2021-22 debt

amount [SEC=0OFFICIAL:Sensitive, ACCESS=Legal-Privilege]
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Importance: High

Good afternoon, S22

At our last scheduled Risk Management Performance Action Plan meeting with Wulli Wulli Nation
Aboriginal Corporation, we were advised their lawyer/solicitor had sent a further letter regarding
the acquittal.

| am not aware if you have received this letter and attach for your reference.
I am also responding to an email from Melanie, Finance, and IT Branch around debt recovery.

Are you able to advise if you have received a copy of the letter and if any action has been
undertaken?

We are only too happy to discuss this matter further if required and look forward to your
response.

Regards
s22

S22

Central Queensland & Wide Bay Area | South Queensland Region | Eastern Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

p.§22 m.S22

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
Subject: FW: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 21 February 2024 5:29:24 PM
Attachments: image009.png
image010.png
image011.png
image012.png
image013.png
image005.png
image006.png
Fyi.
From:522 @niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2024 2:27 PM
To:522 @official.niaa.gov.au>; S22
@official.niaa.gov.au>
Cc:822 @niaa.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Hi Team
Just an update re Wulli Wulli, | received the below correspondence, | said | would follow up in 2
weeks.

Regards
S22

From: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>

Sent: Thursday, 15 February 2024 3:05 PM

To:522 @niaa.gov.au>
Cc: DebtRecoveryNIAA <DebtRecoveryNIAA@niaa.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=0FFICIAL]

Afternoon S22

WWNAC is currently getting Legal Advice on the Invoice and is it payable. Sorry for any
inconvenience, but once we have received the Advice, | will endeavour to respond as soon as
possible.

Kind Regards
Elizabeth Blucher

Secretary Elizabeth Blucher

Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
PO Box 173

THEODORE, QLD, 4714

Sec retary@wwn ac.org.au
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00457 462 673

From: @niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2024 1:46 PM

To: Secretary <secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Cc: DebtRecoveryNIAA <DebtRecoveryNIAA@niaa.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Good Afternoon
I am following up on the attached outstanding invoice. We have not received payment to date
and the invoice was due by 28.09.2022.
Your prompt attention would be greatly appreciated to avoid further debt recovery actions.
Regards

S22

From: DebtRecoveryNIAA

Sent: Wednesday, 31 January 2024 1:33 PM

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

Sent: Tuesday, 2 January 2024 11:40 AM

To: 'secretary@wwnac.org.au' <secretary@wwnac.org.au>
Cc: DebtRecoveryNIAA <DebtRecoveryNIAA@niaa.gov.au>
Subject: Outstanding Invoice [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

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

0©0¢o

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
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From: SQregion
To: S22 s22
Subject: FW: Seeking SQ Regional view on PBC Support Funding for Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 30 July 2024 7:14:46 AM
Attachments: image007.png
image008.png
image009.png
image010.png
image015.png
image016.png
image017.png
image018.png
image019.png
image011.png

s22 | Executive Assistant

s22 | A/g Regional Manager | Sth Qld Region
National Indigenous Australians Agency (NIAA)

Ph 822 orS22 | Mob :822

E-mail : 522 @official.niaa.gov.au

From:S22 @niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, July 29, 2024 6:15 PM

To: SQregion <SQregion@official.niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Seeking SQ Regional view on PBC Support Funding for Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal
Corporation [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hi South Queensland Regional Office
Seeking your views on managed funding support for Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation.

Land and Native Title Branch has been approached by Queensland South Native Title Services
(QSNTS) about providing funding to support Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation, refer bottom
of email trail. QSNTS is the NIAA funded Native Title Service Provider for the Southern and Central
Queensland region and part of its funding is to support Prescribed Bodies Corporate (PBCs) in the
region to meet their statutory compliance requirements under the CATSI Act and PBC Regulations.
As per below, QSNTS has raised the matter of funding Wulli Wulli Nation PBC, given that the PBC has
been issued with a compliance notice from ORIC.

ORIC has provided the information below on the current examination and compliance notice process

and advised that it would be a matter for NIAA to decide whether funding support is provided to
Wulli Wulli Nation PBC.
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We are proposing that if QSNTS provide support to Wulli Wulli Nation while a compliance notice is in
place that it be on the basis that QSNTS manages all funds i.e. pays all of the invoices for relevant
activities such as costs associated with Board meetings etc. While this approach to funding support is
prescriptive, it would enable QSNTS to provide support to Wulli Wulli PBC if agreed to by the PBC. As
such, grateful for the SQ Region’s input or handling advice on the proposed approach to supporting
Wulli Wulli Nation through QSNTS.

Please feel free to contact me if you wold like to discuss further or have any questions.

Kind regards

s22
Native Title, Land Rights Funding and ABA Opertions | Land & Native Title Branch | Economic Empowerment Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

pS22 m.S22
Charles Perkins House 16 Bowes Place Phillip ACT 2606| PO Box 2191 CANBERRA ACT 2601

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

©0®0°9

From:S47F @oric.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 25 July 2024 3:26 PM

To:S22 @niaa.gov.au>
Cc:S47F @oric.gov.au>

Subject: FW: 2024-25 PBC Support Funding - Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
[SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Hi S22
Kevin asked me to give you a call on this one (you might see a missed call from unknown number).
Happy to talk through but | think all we can really say is ...

e ORIC undertook an examination of the corporation in January 2024.

e As a result of the findings of the examination, we issued a compliance notice on 9 July (copy

on the public register).
e The notice does include actions needed to address financial irregularities.

e We are monitoring the corporations’ responses to the notice (1%t response due on 16 August).
Please feel free to call if you’d like to discuss.

Regards —S47F
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cultural growth and knowledge. We pay respects to Elders past, present and future.

Document 41

This email and any attachments are confidential and may be legally privileged (in which case neither is waived or lost by mistaken delivery). If you
have received this email in error, please notify the sender by return email and remove it and the response from your system. If you are not the
intended recipient, you must not disclose or use the information contained in it in any way. You should ensure this email and any attachments are
virus free. It is your responsibility to ensure that viruses do not adversely affect your system and Queensland South Native Title Services Ltd accepts

no liability for any damage caused by this email or any attachments due to viruses or other defects

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
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From: Compliance (Protected)
To: s11C @clearyhoare.com.au
Cc: kjensen@clearyhoare.com.au; Compliance (Protected)
Subject: NIAA Response to Mr Daniel Patatore 2nd Letter RE WWNAC [SEC=O0FFICIAL]
Date: Tuesday, 11 April 2023 5:52:53 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
20200611 WWNAC Head Agreement exec.pdf
20200611 WWNAC Proj Sched exec.pdf
20211013 Final WWNAC Notice.pdf
20220916 Wulli Wulli AC - Final Letter on debt.pdf
20230411 Response to Mr Daniel Paratore 2nd letter to NIAA.pdf

OFFICIAL
Dears11C

Please find attached a response to your letter of 24 February 2023 seeking further clarification
regarding National Indigenous Australians Agency’s (NIAA’s) correspondence dated 14
November 2022.

Attached are copies of the NIAA Head Agreement and Project Schedule with Wulli Wulli Nation
Aboriginal Corporation (WWNAC) and previous NIAA notices/letters for your reference.

Please contact compliance@niaa.gov.au if you have any further questions or require further
information.

Regards

Compliance Intake Team

Program Compliance and Fraud Branch

National Indigenous Australians Agency

p. 089148 2315

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
respects to the people, the cultures and the elders past, present and emerging..
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sl1l1C
Cleary Hoare Solicitors

Email: s11C @clearyhoare.com.au

Cc: s11C  @clearyhoare.com.au

DearsiiC ,

Thank you for your letter of 24 February 2023 seeking further clarification regarding National
Indigenous Australians Agency’s (NIAA’s) correspondence dated 14 November 2022.

Please find below further information in relation to your questions.

What are the facts, matters and circumstances relied upon to form the assertion that the
‘Acquittal Balance’ was $767,720? Who made the determination and on what basis?

On 19 July 2022 Wulli Wulli Nation Aboriginal Corporation (WWNAC) provided to the NIAA a Non-
audited Statement of Grant Income and Expenditure for the period 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 (the
expenditure report) in accordance with the Project Agreement (copy attached).

The total amount of grant funding to be acquitted for the 2020-2021 financial year was $904,996.00,
consisting of unspent funds carried over from the 2019-20 financial year, funds released by the NIAA
in the 2020-2021 financial year, and interest earned on these amounts.

In the expenditure report, WWNAC stated that it had spent $767,720.00 on consultants and
contractors (Indigenous Work Stars Pty Ltd (IWS)) and $137,276.00 on ‘overheads other attributed
costs’.

The NIAA advised WWNAC that it was in breach of clauses 13, 32 and 35 of the Head Agreement
because WWNAC made the payment of $767,720.00 to IWS and that amount had not been spent on
the Project (as per the NIAA Breach Notice dated 13 October 2021 and letter dated 16 September
2022, attached).

NIAA subsequently met with Mr William O’Chee from Himalaya Consulting, who was engaged by
WWNAC as a Project Manager on 1 September 2022. During the meeting, Mr O’Chee queried if the
debt could be reconsidered due to WWNAC making inroads to deliver the activity in 2021-2022.

WWNAC subsequently submitted a detailed explanation of the administrative costs in the sum of
$137,276.00, which was accepted by NIAA as funding expended by WWNAC in accordance with the
Project Agreement in the 2020-2021 period.

Postal Address: GPO Box 2191, CANBERRA ACT 2601
www.niaa.gov.au ABN: 30429 895 164
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However, the amount of $767,720.00 paid by WWNAC to IWS was determined by the NIAA not to
have been spent by WWNAC on the Project in accordance with WWNAC’s grant obligations.

By paying the funds to IWS, the NIAA determined that WWNAC was also in breach of its obligation
under clause 13 of the Head Agreement to “hold unspent grant money in an account in its name and
which it controls”.

The determination was made by the NIAA delegate in consultation with stakeholders within NIAA.
Why would NIAA pay $767,720 more than what had been approved?

Funding was released to WWNAC as required under the Grant payments table at item 8.2 of the
Project Schedule. On receiving the acquittal, NIAA assessed whether WWNAC spent the funds on the
Project in accordance with the Project Agreement.

Does NIAA assert that our client has not used the funds for particular uses to which the funds were
provided?

Yes. The NIAA paid the amount of $767,720.00 to WWNAC only for the purpose of the Project and
those funds remain unaccounted for - that is, WWNAC has not demonstrated in its acquittal
documentation that this amount was spent only for the purpose of the Project.

WWNAC was solely responsible for complying with the terms of the Project Agreement and specific
outcomes identified in the Project Description at item 2.1 of Part 3 to the Project Schedule. As the
recipient of those funds and the party legally bound to comply with the Project Agreement, WWNAC
remain legally responsible for the grant funds and is therefore liable for the resulting debt.

Does the purported debt relate to deliverables which are alleged to be not yet delivered?

The NIAA acknowledges the inroads made by WWNAC in 2021-22 to deliver the activity before the
end date and understands the Project is now complete.

However, the NIAA reiterates that WWNAC has not provided the NIAA with any evidence that the
$767,720.00 was in fact spent on the Project and that amount remains a debt due to the
Commonwealth which the NIAA is obliged to recover.

| trust the above information has answered your questions. Please contact me at
compliance@niaa.gov.au if you have any further questions or require further information.

Regards

S22

s22

Director

Program Compliance and Fraud Branch
National Indigenous Australian’s Agency

11 April 2023

Postal Address: GPO Box 2191, CANBERRA ACT 2601
www.niaa.gov.au ABN: 30429 895 164
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